TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

TUESDAY, MAY 3, 2022
5:30 P.M.

WATAUGA COUNTY COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTER
COMMUNITY ROOM

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE

5:30 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 1
April 19, 2022, Special Meeting
April 19, 2022, Regular Meeting
April 19, 2022, Closed Session

3 APPROVAL OF THE MAY 3, 2022, AGENDA 11
5:35 4 SHERIFF’S OFFICE REQUESTED AWARD TO RETIRING OFFICER CAPTAIN RUSSELL 13
5:40 5 FY 2023 APPALCART CONTRACTS MR. CRAIG HUGHES 15
5:45 6 PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS MR. JOE FURMAN
A. Performance Guarantee for Wynfield Ridge 33
Townhome Project
B. Middle Fork Greenway Grant Application 37
C. Proposed Revision and Reorganization of the Watauga 41
County Community Housing Trust
5:50 7 REGISTER OF DEEDS HISTORIC RECORDS GRANT PROGRAM Ms. AMY SHOOK 49
APPLICATION REQUEST
5:55 8 Emergency Services Matters MR. WILL HoLT
A. Proposed Letters of Intent for Pre-Positioned Debris 51
Management Contracts
B. Proposed Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 63
6:00 9 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS MR. DERON GEOUQUE
A. Presentation of the FY 2023 Capital Improvement 695
Plan (CIP)
B. Presentation of the Manager’s FY 2023 697
Recommended Budget
C. Announcements 699
6:05 10 PusLIC COMMENT 701
7:05 11 BREAK 701
7:10 12 CLOSED SESSION 701

Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)
Economic Development — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(4)
Personnel Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6)

7:30 13 ADJOURN



050322 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 2:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

April 19, 2022, Special Meeting (PARTF Grant Application)
April 19, 2022, Regular Meeting
April 19, 2022, Closed Session



050322 BCC Meeting

MINUTES

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
SPECIAL MEETING

TUESDAY, APRIL 19, 2022

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a special meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday,
April 19, 2022, at 5:00 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga County
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina.

Chairman Welch called the meeting to order at 5:05 P.M. The following were present:

PRESENT: John Welch, Chairman
Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman
Carrington Pertalion, Commissioner
Larry Turnbow, Commissioner
Anthony di Santi, County Attorney
Deron Geouque, County Manager
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board

[Clerks Note: Commissioner Wallin was not in attendance.]

PRESENTATION OF PARKS AND RECREATION TRUST FUND GRANT APPLICATION

A special public meeting was held to discuss plans to submit, by May 2, 2022, a Parks and
Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) grant application in the amount of $500,000. Ms. Wendy
Patoprsty, the Middle Fork Greenway Director for Blue Ridge Conservancy, stated that, if granted,
the funds would be used toward the development of a thirty-two-acre tract along the Middle Fork
Greenway corridor which would be known as Boone Gorge Park. When fully developed, the park
would connect with the existing Payne Branch Park. Watauga County and Blue Ridge
Conservancy would partner to develop the new park to include fifty parking spaces, approximately
two miles of trails, two bridges, stream restoration, fishing access, wetlands, an outdoor classroom,
and a picnic area.

The following spoke in support of the project: Eva Rand, Ben Henderson, David Jackson, and
Bob DeHart.

Ms. Patoprsty encouraged attendees to take literature available regarding the project. Chairman
Welch offered appreciation to Representative Ray Pickett for attending the meeting and supporting
the project.

ADJOURN

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to adjourn the meeting at
5:25 P.M.
VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0
John Welch, Chairman

ATTEST:
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board



050322 BCC Meeting

MINUTES

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
TUESDAY, APRIL 19, 2022

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday,
April 19, 2022, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga County
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina.

Chairman Welch called the meeting to order at 5:34 P.M. The following were present:

PRESENT: John Welch, Chairman
Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman
Carrington Pertalion, Commissioner
Larry Turnbow, Commissioner
Charlie Wallin, Commissioner
Anthony di Santi, County Attorney
Deron Geouque, County Manager
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board

Commissioner Wallin opened with a prayer and Commissioner Turnbow led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the April 5, 2022, regular meeting and
closed session minutes.

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the
April 5, 2022, regular meeting minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the
April 5, 2022, closed session minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the April 19, 2022, agenda.

Chairman Welch requested to add Boards and Commissions to the agenda to consider an
appointment to the Workforce Development Board.



050322 BCC Meeting

Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to approve the
April 19, 2022, agenda as amended.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PROPOSED RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE MONTH OF MAY AS MENTAL HEALTH
AWARENESS

Commissioner Pertalion read a proposed resolution recognizing the awareness of mental health in
the month of May and recognizing an individual or family from our community that has been
impacted personally by mental health issues. This year the Board will honor the Ligon family.

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to adopt the resolution as
presented by Commissioner Pertalion.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PROPOSED UPDATE OF INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR APPALACHIAN REGIONAL
LIBRARY

Ms. Jane Blackburn, Director of Libraries with Appalachian Regional Library, presented an
Interlocal Agreement with the Appalachian Regional Library that has been adopted by both Ashe
and Wilkes Counties. The current agreement was set to expire in 2022.

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners adopted the new agreement on September 21,
2021; however, additional changes were made prior to adoption by Ashe and Wilkes counties. The
original proposed amendment would add language that would require ARL members to be selected
from each county’s local library advisory boards. This would ensure the ARL Board members
were familiar with their local county library. The additional proposed changes included requiring
the ARL Director to consult with the local library board of each member county for review and
input in the selection and appointment of the county librarian, and prior to ARL Board approval
of the annual budget, the separate budgets of each member county be submitted to that county’s
local library board for review and input. All of the proposed amendments were currently in
practice but not in writing.

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the interlocal
agreement with Appalachian Regional Library with all amendments included as adopted by Ashe
and Wilkes Counties.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



050322 BCC Meeting

BUDGET AMENDMENTS

Ms. Misty Watson, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments:

Account # Description Debit Credit
104310-451001 Capital Outlay — Equipment $19,140
103300-349400 NC Crime Commission Grant $19,140

The amendment recognized the purchase of radars provided through a grant from the NC Crime
Commission as approve at the February 15, 2022, Board meeting.

103300-332006  Senior Health Info Grant $4,007
105550-449901 Senior Health Information Program $4,007

The amendment recognized the acceptance of the Senior Health Insurance Information Program
(SHIIP) Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act (MIPPA) grant funds as
approved at the February 15, 2022, Board meeting. Matching funds were not required from the
County.

104310-451000 Capital Outlay — Equipment $9,250
103839-343100 Donations — Sheriff’s Office $9,250

The amendment recognized the donation of a K-9 as approved at the February 15, 2022, Board
meeting.

105911-471000 Lottery Funds $300,000
105911-470001 Carpetand Tile $45,000
105911-470005 Cafeteria Equipment $55,000
105911-470037 Gym Floors $20,000
105911-470070 Retaining Wall — Bethel $50,000
105911-470071 Boiler System — Hardin Park $10,000
105911-470019 Classroom Doors $20,000
105911-470043 Renovations/Replace Roofs $100,000

The amendment recognized lottery funds requested and approved at the February 15, 2022,
Board meeting.

105911-470041 Pavement Repair/Resurface $160,000
105911-470034  Security Cameras $50,000
105911-470029 Mobile Unit $150,000
105911-470036 HVAC/Sewer Pumps $25,000
105911-470069 1:1 Devices $300,000
103980-398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund $685,000
213991-399101 Fund Balance Appropriation $685,000
219800-498010 Transfer to General Fund $685,000

The amendment transferred funds for capital needs from the Capital Reserve for the School
System as approved at the February 15, 2022, Board meeting.

104920-463000 General Appropriations $10,000
213991-399101 Fund Balance Appropriation $10,000
219800-498010 Transfer to General Fund $10,000

103980-398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund $10,000



050322 BCC Meeting

The amendment transferred funds from Capital Reserve for Economic Development funding for
the Boomerang Music and Arts Festival as recommended by the Economic Development
Commission (EDC) and approved at the March 1, 2022, Board meeting.

145310-442201 PC Software and Licenses $3,723
143531-323000 Admin Cost Reimbursement — State and Federal $18,723
145310-469101 Professional Services — Legal $30,000
143991-399102 Fund Balance $15,000

The amendment recognized legal fees and PC licenses above the budgeted amount for the
Department of Social Services. The County will be reimbursed 100% of the PC licenses and
50% for legal fees.

145410-449031 CARES LIEAP CIP $317,623
143531-323000 Admin Cost Reimbursement — State and Federal $317,623

The amendment recognized the allocation of additional funds from the NC Department of Health
and Human Services additional funds to assist with LIEAP under the American Rescue Plan
Act.

145410-449300 APS Essential Services $3,518
143531-323000 Admin Cost Reimbursement — State and Federal $3,518

The amendment recognized the allocation of additional funds from the NC Department of Health
and Human Services additional funds to assist with Adult Protective Services.

104920-463000 General Appropriations $22,000
213991-399101 Fund Balance Appropriation $22,000
219800-498010 Transfer to General Fund $22,000
103980-398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund $22,000

The amendment transferred funds from Capital Reserve for Economic Development funding for
the Spotlight Gold Campaign and video production as recommended by the Economic
Development Commission and approved at the March 15, 2022, Board meeting.

103835-341351 Town of Beech Mountain Ambulance Crew $71,471
104199-499100 Contingency $11,529
104370-469501 Contracted Services — Watauga Medics $83,000

The amendment recognized funds for a 24/7 ambulance to be stationed in Beech Mountain as
approved at the March 15, 2022, Board meeting.

105890-469857 Blue Ridge RC&D — Todd Island Park $15,000
104199-499100 Contingency $15,000

The amendment allocates funds to the Todd Island Park project with the caveat Ashe County
match the $15,000 as approved at the November 17, 2020, Board meeting.

105890-469858 Habitat for Humanity $20,000
104199-499100 Contingency $20,000

The amendment allocated funds to Habitat for Humanity for construction of a new road as
approved at the March 1, 2022, Board meeting.



050322 BCC Meeting

667420-457000 Capital Outlay — Land $125,000
663991-399100 Retained Earnings $125,000

The amendment recognized funds to purchase property where the current Highway 421
Container Site is located as approved at the February 15, 2022, Board meeting.

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to approve the budget
amendments as presented by Ms. Watson.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

TAX MATTERS

A. Monthly Collections Report
Tax Administrator, Mr. Larry Warren, presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of
March 2022. The report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was required.
B. Refunds and Releases

Mr. Warren stated that there were no refunds and presented the Releases Report for March 2022
for Board approval:
TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the Releases
Report for March 2022 as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

BOARD OF ELECTIONS SOFTWARE, MAINTENANCE, AND WARRANTY AGREEMENT
WITH ELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE, LL C (ES&S)

Mr. Matt Snyder, Board of Elections Director, stated that, per Statute, a contract was required for
the maintenance of elections equipment. The contract was previously required every five years
but now had to be approved annually. Mr. Snyder presented a one-year contract with Election
Systems & Software, LLC (“ES&S”) for software, maintenance, and warranty for voting machines
to be contingent upon County Attorney approval. The local Board of Elections voted unanimously
to approve the contract with ES&S in the amount of $28,917.52 annually. Adequate funds were
budgeted to cover the expense.

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to approve the one-year
contract with Election Systems & Software, LLC (“ES&S”) in the amount of $28,917.52 annually.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



050322 BCC Meeting

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Boards and Commissions

Workforce Development Board

Chairman Welch stated that Mr. Keith Deveraux, Director of High Country Council of
Governments Work Force Development Board, had requested the reappointment of Ms. Jessica
Auten for a term ending on June 30, 2024.

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to waive the second
reading and appoint Ms. Jessica Auten as a Watauga County representative on the Work Force
Development Board with a term ending on June 30, 2024.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0
B. Announcements
County Manager Geouque announced the following:

e Budget Work Sessions are scheduled for Thursday, May 12, 2022, beginning at 12:00 noon
and Friday, May 13, 2022, beginning at 9:00 A.M.

e Registration for the 2022 Watauga Compassionate Community Initiative (WCCI)
Conference is now open and available at www.wataugacci.org. Registration closes
Monday, April 25, 2022.

e The deadline date for citizens to appeal their new property tax valuation has been extended
to April 29, 2022. The extension was enacted due to a printing issue which caused the
valuation letters to be mailed later than planned. The new date will give property owners
a full three-week period to appeal their value.

Vice-Chairman Kennedy announced that the last of the four housing forum sessions was upcoming
and encouraged attendance.

County Manager Geouque stated that the Board of Elections would be using the Board of
Commissioners’ Board Room for one-stop voting through May 17, 2022, and again in July for a
second primary.

The County Manager recommended moving the May 3 and July 19 meetings to the Community
Room in the Community Recreation Center (CRC) and to reschedule the May 17, 2022, meeting
to either Wednesday, May 18, or Tuesday, May 24, and hold it in the Commissioners’ Board Room
which is better suited for budget public hearing which is scheduled for the second meeting in May
each year.


http://www.wataugacci.org/

050322 BCC Meeting

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to change the venue of the
May 3, 2022, and July 19, 2022, regular Board meetings to the Community Room in the
Community Recreation Center and to reschedule the May 17, 2022, meeting to Tuesday, May 24,
2022, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PuBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

CLOSED SESSION

At 6:03 P.M., Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to enter
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Personnel
Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6).

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to resume the open meeting
at 7:36 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PossIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION

There was no action after closed session.

ADJOURN

Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to adjourn the meeting at
7:36 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0
John Welch, Chairman

ATTEST:
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board



050322 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

10



050322 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 3:

APPROVAL OF THE MAY 3, 2022, AGENDA




050322 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

12



050322 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 4:

SHERIFF’S OFFICE REQUESTED AWARD TO RETIRING OFFICER
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

G.S. 20-187.2, as included in your packets, allows governing bodies of a law enforcement agency
to award a retiring member the service side arm at a price determined by the governing body. Law
enforcement personnel may retire at age 55 with 25 years of credible service with full retirement
benefits.

Deputy Patrick Todd Phillips is retiring June 1, 2022. The Sheriff’s Office requests that Todd’s
respective side arm and badge be awarded to him upon retirement and that the Board set the price
of the side arm at $1.

Board action is required to make this award.



WATAUGA COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE
Len Hagaman, Sheriff

Captain Preston Russell

Patrol Division

DE@EHVE

NI apr 27 a2

From: Captain Preston Russell L’

To: Deron Geouque- Watauga County Manger

Ref: Patrick Todd Phillips Retirement

Patrick Todd Phillips has announced his retirement date from Watauga Sheriff’s Office effective
June 1, 2022. Deputy Phillips has served the citizens of Watauga County since July 15, 1994. Sheriff
Hagaman requests permission allow Deputy Phillips to receive his Glock 22 service weapon #RYD566, as
a token of his hard work and dedication to the Sheriff’s Office and the citizens of Watauga County.

Respectfully Requested by: /¢’>
Captain: Preston Russell 7
e/

14



050322 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 5:

FY 2023 APPALCART CONTRACTS
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Craig Hughes, Appal CART Director, will present the contracts for transportation services for
the Project on Aging and Social Services Departments for FY 2023. The proposed rates for the
Project on Aging, Department of Social Services, and other county functions are $2.28 per direct
mile.

Mr. Hughes will present a contract for the POA Meal delivery. The rate is $1.45 per direct mile.
This is one of the rare instances that direct miles and service miles are about the same. Thus, the
rate of $1.45 versus the $2.28 rate proposed in the other contracts.

Board action is required to approve the contracts.



Providing Public Transportation Since 1981

AppalCART

305NCHWY 105 Bypass ® Boone, NC28607 o P:(828)297-1300 e F: (828)297-4100
info@appalcart.com o AppalCART.com

April 26, 2022

Mr. Deron T. Geouque, County Manager
Watauga County Administration Building
814 W. King Street, Suite 205

Boone, NC 28607

Dear Deron:

The proposed transportation contracts with Watauga County for FY 23 have been attached for the
County’s consideration. The contracts include: Watauga County Project on Aging, Watauga County
Project on Aging — Meals, Watauga County Department of Social Services, and Watauga County Non-
Medicaid. Each contract has a rate based on “direct mileage” of $2.28 per direct mile (Direct Mile =
distance from origin to destination for each passenger.) except the Project on Aging - Meal Delivery.
The direct mileage rate allows agencies to easily understand how much their bill will be impacted if they
add or remove a trip and it is the rate type required by Medicaid. The rate is the same as the contract
the county approved last year. The majority of the funding for this transportation is from the NCDOT
Rural Operating Assistance Program grant funding and Medicaid. The Project on Aging - Meal Delivery
rate is $1.45 per direct mile due to the length of the trip and the origins and destinations.

Medicaid reimbursement and trip planning has begun a transition to brokers, but we still provide many
trips for Watauga County Medicaid clients. The number of Medicaid clients served by Watauga County
DSS is expected to decrease while the increasing the number of trips requested by Medicaid Trip
Brokers.

Sincerely,

Craig Hughes,

Transportation Director

16



050322 BCC Meeting

For FY 22/23
Department of Social Services-Medicaid
This Agreement, effective this
13t day of July 2022, by and between
AppalCART and

Agency Name: Dept of Social Services — Watauga County

Contact person: Tom Hughes

Address: 132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite C Boone, NC 28607

Phone: 264-8100 Fax: 265-7638 E-mail: tom.hughes@watgov.org

Rate ---- $2.28 per direct passenger mile per passenger

3k 3k 3k ok 3k ok 3k ok 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k ok 3k ok ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 3k ok 5k 3k 3k 5k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k ok 5k 3k 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k 3k >k 5k 3k 3k %k ok 3k 3k 3k 3k >k 5k ok 3k %k %k 3k %k %k %k *k

NORTH CAROLINA
AGREEMENT
WATAUGA COUNTY
THIS AGREEMENT, effective this 1st day of July, 2021 and lasting through the 30th day of June, 2023, by
and between AppalCART, hereinafter referred to as the Authority; and Watauga County on behalf of the
Department of Social Services, hereinafter referred to as DSS;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the Authority and the DSS

do agree as follows:



050322 BCC Meeting
Section 1. Purpose of Agreement. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the continued

implementation of a consolidated, coordinated Public Transportation Project in Watauga County, to state the
terms, conditions and mutual undertakings of the parties as to the manner in which the Authority will provide
transportation services for the DSS.

Section 2. Adoption of Required Provision. This Agreement incorporates the required provisions of the North

Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART Agreement under Project Number 23-CT-007, and

subsequent agreements between the North Carolina Department of Transportation and the Authority.

The Authority shall comply with audit requirements as described in N.C.G.S 146C-6-22 and OMB Circular A-133

and shall disclose all information required by 42 USC 455.104, or 42 USC 455.105, or 42 USC 455.106.

Section 3. Scope of Work.

1. The normal hours of operation shall be between 6:00AM and 6:00PM Monday through Friday.
The Authority will provide regularly scheduled transportation services for the DSS as may be mutually agreed
upon. DSS shall notify the Authority at least one (1) business day in advance of any revisions in scheduling,
or of any additions of passengers. Failure to provide adequate notification of cancellations may result in
billing for services scheduled unless adverse weather was the cause (Adequate notice is defined as two hours
before any revenue time spent attempting the trip. If a trip has not been canceled appropriately, the trip is
marked as a “No Show”. The County will be billed for the mileage to the pick-up point and back to
AppalCART. A passenger with three (3) no shows in 30 days will be suspended for 30 days.). Flexible

scheduling for special activities may be implemented as deemed appropriate as long as at least three (3)

days notice is given. Ten (10) days notice is preferred for out of town trips. The routes and schedules may be
modified from time to time by the Authority in order to provide for a more effective and efficient provision
of service to the citizens of Watauga County.

2. The Authority will be responsible for maintaining insurance to meet the requirements of
the North Carolina Department of Transportation, FTA, and the DSS with respect to liability insurance,

vehicle inspections, and drivers including licensing, background checks, and drug and alcohol testing. It is
18



050322 BCC Meeting
agreed that coverage limits will meet the amount required for common carrier passenger vehicles by the

North Carolina Utilities Commission. Insurance Company is:

NCACC RMP.L&P Policy # LP-AP-473-16.

First lien holder on all vehicles titled to the Authority shall be the North Carolina Department of
Transportation - Integrated Mobility Division.

The Authority will ensure that the vehicles will be equipped, maintained, operated and managed in a safe,
efficient and businesslike manner, and the parties do further agree that the driver shall have the final control
regarding safety and whether or not the routes should be followed on days of adverse weather.

The Authority will provide driver training for new drivers and refresher courses for long-term drivers, to
ensure that all drivers have adequate knowledge of passenger safety, CPR, first aid, defensive driving and
preventive vehicle maintenance.

Vehicles will be equipped with a land transportation communication radio system.

The Authority shall commence performance of this contract on the 1st day of July, 2022, and shall complete,
renew, or amend this contract as appropriate to complete the terms, conditions and required provisions of
the North Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART under Project Number 23-CT-007.

By mutual agreement, the unit rate of said service shall be $2.28 per direct vehicle mile. The Authority will
submit itemized invoices to the DSS on a semi-monthly basis. DSS will have two weeks to submit the
payment authorizations to NC Tracks and shall notify the Authority upon successful submission of the
authorizations (If authorizations are not submitted within two weeks, then AppalCART may bill Watauga
County for the services.). The Authority will then submit the requests for payment to NC Tracks. All costs
charged to the DSS including any approved services performed by the Authority shall be supported by
properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, canceled checks, deposit slips, or vouchers evidencing in
detail the nature and property of the charges. The Authority will use billing codes specified by DSS on

invoices, and will report no-shows, daily, and cancellations on a monthly basis.



050322 BCC Meeting
e Allclaims that DSS has authorized, but cannot be processed through NC Tracks will be billed to

Watauga County.

9. The Authority shall retain all records pertaining to this Project for a period of three (3) years from the date of
this Agreement. The Authority shall permit North Carolina Department of Transportation - Integrated
Mobility Division and DSS to inspect all work, materials, payrolls, and other data and records with regard to
the Project and to audit the books, records and accounts of the Authority pertaining to the Project.

10. Passenger complaints should be reported to the Authority’s Director 828.297.1300 x 104

director@appalcart.com

11. Names of Board Members and Managers are posted and updated at www.appalcart.com , any changes will

be reported to DSS.
12. If the Authority becomes excluded from participation in this agreement, the DSS will be promptly notified.

Section 4. Rate Changes. The Authority reserves the right to renegotiate this agreement when “Managed Care”

is implemented in Watauga County.

Section 5. Termination of Agreement. Either party may terminate the Agreement by giving the other party

sixty (60) days advance written notice.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.

BY:
John Welch
Watauga County Commissioners Chair
ATTEST:
Anita Fogle
Clerk to the County Commissioners
BY:
Frank David V
ATTEST: AppalCART Board Chair

Patrick Nelson

Clerk to the AppalCART Board
20


mailto:director@appalcart.com
http://www.appalcart.com/

050322 BCC Meeting

For FY 22/23

Watauga County Project on Aging

This Agreement, effective this
13t day of July 2022, by and between
AppalCART and

Agency Name: Project on Aging — Watauga County

Contact Person: Angie Boitnotte

Address: 132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A Boone, NC 28607

Phone: 265.8092 Fax: 264-2060 E-mail: angie.boitnotte@watgov.org

Rate: $2.28 per direct mile

3k 3k 3k ok ok ok 3k ok 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k ok 3k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k 3k 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k ok 5k 3k 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k 3k ok 5k 3k 3k %k ok 3k 3k 3k 3k >k 5k ok 3k %k %k 3k %k %k %k *k

NORTH CAROLINA
AGREEMENT
WATAUGA COUNTY
THIS AGREEMENT, effective this 12 day of July, 2022 and lasting through the 30th day of June, 2023, by
and between AppalCART, hereinafter referred to as the Authority; and Watauga County on behalf of the
PROJECT ON AGING, hereinafter referred to as Project on Aging;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the Authority and the

Project on Aging do agree as follows:

21



050322 BCC Meeting

Section 1. Purpose of Agreement. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the continued

implementation of a consolidated, coordinated Public Transportation Project in Watauga County, to state the
terms, conditions and mutual undertakings of the parties as to the manner in which the Authority will provide
transportation services for the Project on Aging.

Section 2. Adoption of Required Provision. This Agreement incorporates the required provisions of the North

Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART Agreement under Project Number 23-CT-007, and
subsequent agreements between the North Carolina Department of Transportation and the Authority.
The Authority shall comply with audit requirements as described in N.C.G.S 146C-6-22 and OMB Circular A-133
and shall disclose all information required by 42 USC 455.104, or 42 USC 455.105, or 42 USC 455.106.
Section 3. Scope of Work.
1. The normal hours of operation shall be between 6:00AM and 6:00PM Monday through Friday.
The Authority will provide regularly scheduled transportation services for the Project on Aging as may be
mutually agreed upon. The Project on Aging shall notify the Authority at least one (1) business day in
advance of any revisions in scheduling, or of any additions of passengers. Failure to provide adequate
notification of cancellations may result in billing for services scheduled unless adverse weather was the
cause. Flexible scheduling for special activities may be implemented as deemed appropriate as long as at
least three (3) days notice is given. The routes and schedules may be modified from time to time by the
Authority in order to provide for a more effective and efficient provision of service to the citizens of Watauga
County.
2. The Authority will be responsible for maintaining insurance to meet the requirements of
the North Carolina Department of Transportation, FTA, and the Project on Aging with respect to liability
insurance, vehicle inspections, and drivers including licensing, background checks, and drug and alcohol

testing. It is agreed that coverage limits will meet the amount required for common carrier passenger

22



050322 BCC Meeting
vehicles by the North Carolina Utilities Commission. The Authority’s Insurance Company is NCACC RMP.L&P

Policy # LP-AP-473-16.

First lien holder on all vehicles titled to the Authority shall be the North Carolina Department of
Transportation - Integrated Mobility Division.
The Authority will ensure that the vehicles will be equipped, maintained, operated and managed in a safe,
efficient and businesslike manner, and the parties do further agree that the driver shall have the final control
regarding safety and whether or not the routes should be followed on days of adverse weather.
The Authority will provide driver training for new drivers and refresher courses for long-term drivers, to
ensure that all drivers have adequate knowledge of passenger safety, CPR, first aid, defensive driving and
preventive vehicle maintenance.
Vehicles will be equipped with a land transportation communication radio system.
The Authority shall commence performance of this contract on the 1st day of July, 2022, and shall complete,
renew, or amend this contract as appropriate to complete the terms, conditions and required provisions of
the North Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART under Project Number 23-CT-007.
By mutual agreement, the unit rate of said service shall be $2.28 per direct vehicle mile. The Authority will
submit itemized invoices to the Project on Aging on a monthly basis, payment of terms is thirty (30) days net.
All costs charged to the Project on Aging, including any approved services performed by the Authority, shall
be supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, canceled checks, deposit slips, or
vouchers evidencing in detail the nature and property of the charges. The Authority will use billing codes
specified by the Project on Aging on invoices, and will report no-shows daily, and cancellations on a monthly
basis.
The Authority shall retain all records pertaining to this Project for a period of three (3) years from the date of
this Agreement. The Authority shall permit North Carolina Department of Transportation — Integrated

Mobility Division and the Watauga County Project on Aging to inspect all work, materials, payrolls, and other

23



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

050322 BCC Meeting
data and records with regard to the Project and to audit the books, records and accounts of the Authority

pertaining to the Project.
Passenger complaints should be reported to the Authority’s Director 828.297.1300 x 104

director@appalcart.com

Names of Board Members and Managers are posted and updated at www.appalcart.com, any changes will

be reported to the Project on Aging.

If the Authority becomes excluded from participation in this agreement, the Project on Aging will be
promptly notified.

The Project on Aging Directors will complete the Client Registration Forms and determine eligibility for
transportation services. The Authority will refer them to the appropriate Senior Center Director

(LEH or WWCQC).

At the initial registration/orientation, the Project on Aging will provide participants with a letter which states
the following: cost of the service, funding source, purpose of consumer contributions, and procedures for
making a donation. The Project on Aging is responsible for the collection and reporting of all donations. If a
participant attempts to make a donation to the Authority’s staff, they should be referred to a Project on
Aging staff member. The Authority should refer participants to the Project on Aging if there are any

guestions regarding consumer contributions.

Section 4. Termination of Agreement. Either party may terminate the Agreement by giving the other party

sixty (60) days advance written notice.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.

BY:

John Welch

ATTEST: Watauga County Commissioners Chair

Anita Fogle
Clerk to the County Commissioners

24


mailto:director@appalcart.com
http://www.appalcart.com/

050322 BCC Meeting
BY:

Frank David V
ATTEST: AppalCART Board Chair

Patrick Nelson
Clerk to the AppalCART Board

25



050322 BCC Meeting

For FY 22/23

Watauga County Project on Aging-Meals

This Agreement, effective this
13t day of July 2022, by and between
AppalCART and

Agency Name: Project on Aging — Watauga County

Contact Person: Angie Boitnotte

Address: 132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A Boone, NC 28607

Phone: 265.8092 Fax: 264-2060 E-mail: angie.boitnotte@watgov.org

Rate: $1.45 per direct vehicle mile

3k 3k 3k ok ok ok 3k ok 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k ok 3k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k 3k 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k ok 5k 3k 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k 3k ok 5k 3k 3k %k ok 3k 3k 3k 3k >k 5k ok 3k %k %k 3k %k %k %k *k

NORTH CAROLINA
AGREEMENT
WATAUGA COUNTY
THIS AGREEMENT, effective this 12 day of July, 2022 and lasting through the 30th day of June, 2023, by
and between AppalCART, hereinafter referred to as the Authority; and Watauga County on behalf of the
PROJECT ON AGING, hereinafter referred to as Project on Aging;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the Authority and the

Project on Aging do agree as follows:

26



050322 BCC Meeting

Section 1. Purpose of Agreement. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the continued

implementation of a consolidated, coordinated Public Transportation Project in Watauga County, to state the
terms, conditions and mutual undertakings of the parties as to the manner in which the Authority will provide
transportation services for the Project on Aging.

Section 2. Adoption of Required Provision. This Agreement incorporates the required provisions of the North

Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART Agreement under Project Number 23-CT-007, and
subsequent agreements between the North Carolina Department of Transportation and the Authority.

The Authority shall comply with audit requirements as described in N.C.G.S 146C-6-22 and OMB Circular A-133
and shall disclose all information required by 42 USC 455.104, or 42 USC 455.105, or 42 USC 455.106.

Section 3. Scope of Work.

1. The normal hours of operation shall be between 6:00AM and 6:00PM Monday through Friday.

The Authority will provide regularly scheduled transportation of meals for the Project on Aging as may be

mutually agreed upon. The routes and schedules may be modified from time to time by the Authority in
order to provide for a more effective and efficient provision of service to the citizens of
Watauga County.

2. The Authority will be responsible for maintaining insurance to meet the requirements of
the North Carolina Department of Transportation, FTA, and the Project on Aging with respect to liability
insurance, vehicle inspections, and drivers including licensing, background checks, and drug and alcohol
testing. It is agreed that coverage limits will meet the amount required for common carrier passenger

vehicles by the North Carolina Utilities Commission. The Authority’s Insurance Company is NCACC RMP.L&P

Policy # LP-AP-473-16.
3. First lien holder on all vehicles titled to the Authority shall be the North Carolina Department of

Transportation — Integrated Mobility Division (NCDOT-IMD).

27



050322 BCC Meeting

The Authority will ensure that the vehicles will be equipped, maintained, operated and managed in a safe,

efficient and businesslike manner, and the parties do further agree that the driver shall have the final control

regarding safety and whether or not the routes should be followed on days of adverse weather.

10.

The Authority will provide driver training for new drivers and refresher courses for long-term drivers, to
ensure that all drivers have adequate knowledge of passenger safety, CPR, first aid, defensive driving and
preventive vehicle maintenance.

Vehicles will be equipped with a land transportation communication radio system.

The Authority shall commence performance of this contract on the_1st day of July, 2022, and shall complete,
renew, or amend this contract as appropriate to complete the terms, conditions and required provisions of
the North Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART under Project Number 23-CT-007.

By mutual agreement, the unit rate of said service shall be $1.45 per direct vehicle mile. The Authority will
submit itemized invoices to the Project on Aging on a monthly basis, payment of terms is thirty (30) days net.
All costs charged to the Project on Aging, including any approved services performed by the Authority, shall
be supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, canceled checks, deposit slips, or
vouchers evidencing in detail the nature and property of the charges. The Authority will use billing codes
specified by the Project on Aging on invoices, and will report no-shows daily, and cancellations on a monthly
basis.

The Authority shall retain all records pertaining to this Project for a period of three (3) years from the date of
this Agreement. The Authority shall permit North Carolina Department of Transportation — Integrated
Mobility Division and the Watauga County Project on Aging to inspect all work, materials, payrolls, and other
data and records with regard to the Project and to audit the books, records and accounts of the Authority
pertaining to the Project.

Passenger complaints should be reported to the Authority’s Director 828.297.1300 x 104

director@appalcart.com

28


mailto:director@appalcart.com

050322 BCC Meeting
11. Names of Board Members and Managers are posted and updated at www.appalcart.com, any changes will

be reported to the Project on Aging.
12. If the Authority becomes excluded from participation in this agreement, the Project on Aging will be
promptly notified.

Section 4. Termination of Agreement. Either party may terminate the Agreement by giving the other party

sixty (60) days advance written notice.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.

BY:
John Welch
Watauga County Commissioners Chair
ATTEST:
Anita Fogle
Clerk to the County Commissioners
BY:
Frank David V
ATTEST: AppalCART Board Chair

Patrick Nelson
Clerk to the AppalCART Board

29


http://www.appalcart.com/

050322 BCC Meeting

For FY 22/23
Watauga County: Non-Medicaid Transportation
This Agreement, effective this
15t day of July, 2022, by and between
AppalCART and

Agency Name: Watauga County

Contact person: Deron Geougue

Address: 814 West King St, Suite 205 Boone, NC 28607

Phone: 265-8000 E-mail: Deron.Geougue@watgov.org

Rate ---- $2.28 per direct mile
Kkkkkkokkokkokkokkokkokkkkkkkkkkskkskkskokskskskokskkskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskokskokskkkskkskskskkskkk

THIS AGREEMENT, effective this 1st day of July, 2022 and lasting through the_30th day of June, 2023, by

and between AppalCART, hereinafter referred to as the Authority; and Watauga County;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the Authority and the
County do agree as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of Agreement. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the continued

implementation of a consolidated, coordinated Public Transportation Project in Watauga County, to state the
terms, conditions and mutual undertakings of the parties as to the manner in which the Authority will provide
transportation services for the County.

Section 2. Adoption of Required Provision. This Agreement incorporates the required provisions of the North

Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART Agreement under Project Number 23-CT-007, and

subsequent agreements between the North Carolina Department of Transportation and the Authority.

30



050322 BCC Meeting
The Authority shall comply with audit requirements as described in N.C.G.S 146C-6-22 and OMB Circular A-133

and shall disclose all information required by 42 USC 455.104, or 42 USC 455.105, or 42 USC 455.106.
Section 3. Scope of Work.
1. The normal hours of operation shall be between 6:00AM and 6:00PM Monday through Friday.
The Authority will provide regularly scheduled transportation services for the County as may be mutually
agreed upon. Flexible scheduling for special activities may be implemented as deemed appropriate as long
as at least three (3) days notice is given. Ten (10) days notice is preferred for out of town trips. The routes
and schedules may be modified from time to time by the Authority in order to provide for a more effective
and efficient provision of service to the citizens of Watauga County.
2. The Authority will be responsible for maintaining insurance to meet the requirements of
the North Carolina Department of Transportation, FTA, and the County with respect to liability insurance,
vehicle inspections, and drivers including licensing, background checks, and drug and alcohol testing. It is
agreed that coverage limits will meet the amount required for common carrier passenger vehicles by the
North Carolina Utilities Commission. Insurance Company is:

NCACC RMP.L&P Policy # LP-AP-473-16.

3. The Authority will ensure that the vehicles will be equipped, maintained, operated and managed in a safe,
efficient and businesslike manner, and the parties do further agree that the driver shall have the final control
regarding safety and whether or not the routes should be followed on days of adverse weather.

4. The Authority will provide driver training for new drivers and refresher courses for long-term drivers, to
ensure that all drivers have adequate knowledge of passenger safety, CPR, first aid, defensive driving and
preventive vehicle maintenance.

5. The Authority shall commence performance of this contract on the 1% day of July, 2022, and shall complete,
renew, or amend this contract as appropriate to complete the terms, conditions and required provisions of

the North Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART under Project Number 23-CT-007.

31



050322 BCC Meeting
6. By mutual agreement, the unit rate of said service shall be $2.28 per direct mile. The Authority will submit

itemized invoices to the County on a monthly basis, payment of terms is thirty (30) days net.

7. The Authority shall retain all records pertaining to this Project for a period of three (3) years from the date of
this Agreement. The Authority shall permit North Carolina Department of Transportation — Integrated
Mobility Division and County to inspect all work, materials, payrolls, and other data and records with regard
to the Project and to audit the books, records and accounts of the Authority pertaining to the Project.

8. Passenger complaints should be reported to the Authority’s Director 828.297.1300 x 104

director@appalcart.com

9. If the Authority becomes excluded from participation in this agreement, the County will be promptly
notified.

Section 4. Termination of Agreement. Either party may terminate the Agreement by giving the other party

sixty (60) days advance written notice.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.

BY:
John Welch
Watauga County Commissioners Chair
ATTEST:
Anita Fogle
Clerk to the County Commissioners
BY:
Frank David V
ATTEST: AppalCART Board Chair

Patrick Nelson
Clerk to the AppalCART Board

32


mailto:director@appalcart.com

050322 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 6:

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS

A. Performance Guarantee for Wynfield Ridge Townhome Project
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Pursuant to Chapter 18 (Subdivisions & Multi Unit Structures), Article VIII, Section 3 of the
Watauga County Planning & Development Ordinance, the developers of Wynfield Ridge
Townhomes is presenting a performance guarantee in the amount of $25,902, which is the amount
of the estimated cost to complete the required road paving plus 20%.

Board action is required to accept the performance guarantee in the amount $25,902 for the
Wynfield Ridge Townhomes.

33



050322 BCC Meeting

Memorandum

Date: April 26, 2022

To:  Board of Commissioners, County Manager

From: Joe Furma@@

RE: Performance guarantee for townhome project

Pursuant to Chapter 18 {Subdivisions & Multi Unit Structures), Article VIII, Section 3 of the
Watauga County Planning & Development Ordinance, the developers of Wynfield Ridge
Townhomes would like to provide a performance guarantee in the form of a check in the
amount of $25,902. That is the amount of the estimated cost to complete required road paving
plus 20%. The regulations specify that the guarantee must be “satisfactory to the County
Commissioners”; accordingly, approval is requested. The paving estimate and plat (road section
to be paved is highlighted) are attached.

34



PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TCO: PHONE

BOBBY TODD ' (828)964-2389

DATE

4121122

STREET JOB NAME

WILSONS RIDGE RCAD

CITY, STATE, ZIP JOB LOCATION

BOONE NC

DATE OF PLANS:

JOB PHONE

We herahy submit spetificalions and estimales for,

FROM WILSON RIDGE ROAD UP APPROX 390 FT 20 FT WIDE
GRADE ADD STONE AS NEEDED 36 TON ALLOWANCE
WET AND SET STONE PAVE WITH 2 INCH FINISHED ASPHALT

**if a slgnificant rise in the cost of fuol and/er material occurs, price may be adjusted

accordingly customer will be notified of any change in price before work begins

21,585

We propose hereby to fumish materials end labor - complete in accardance with above specifications for the sum of:

dollars ($

Peyment to be made as follows:

Upon Completion

Al materialis guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a veorkmantike manner Authorized

accarding 1o standard praciices. Any zlteration or devlaticn fom above spesificatons involving extra | .
costs wil be axecuted only upor Wiitten arde’s, and wil become an extra charge over and above theSignAture :Ronnie Hicks
estmate. All ag upan sirikes, or dalays beyend eur canol, Owrier lo

carry fire, trnada and other necessary inSurance. Our warkers are fully toverad by Werkmen's

Compensalicn Insurance. Note: This prapossl may ba wilhdravm by us if not accapled

30

days.

Accepta nce Of Proposal - the above prices, specifications and condiions.
are safisfaclory and are heraby accepled. You are uthofized 1o do the work as specified. Payment
will be made as outfrad above.

Dale of Acceptance: Signature:

050322 BCC Meeting

35



o
\M| T T T T T P Y T T T Y T T T T T T T T T T L
L & I-Hd £9022 oN 908 0620-¥92 (828) 7 L0982 BulodR) YloN '00g ;s ylnog (z¢ Aemyb cn ogwl S Wouidoy () |
s 86£2-0 ‘¥d ‘slueljnsuo) g siokaping pup] [euoissajold uenyzejeddy i
S b v
2 s
@ HI6Z MGZZ0NTIN ‘51 = =
= (BLoE u.m.N.m.?ng_ A43) i —— — ﬂu..ep_ s w&uqux_ o aged _ai.%ixa. hu_.nn e L
8 T : N 0 i BT SRR S e et o T o
3 009D .06=.] 5! LIS GLLTE TGGHLHLS 42 E— ori s i i osd Tl i PO Pt s
eles Jo Alunog
% .QM&PN&%QW& Z-3 egorrs GLion Jo aluls Lmdoxd wyi Jo a0 i raip am we | ieyl Linsd Jaay @amg |
BLILS -1 -
| y S92 LO0FGLILS -1 S R R, m..m..mm.aﬂaan pue dusiukg Jo alea]iliag ]
2202 ‘2z __t_q_v. pasiray e © LgzZ'a .wwma_nn.mﬁw 47 Agong LEM G @ UMK IOl 87 Aasdaxd SNL IION .....W?mﬂwww:.,w__um\f..
HE ¥ a2ty i i S A,
QNQN .Q___ ;—NﬁFﬂ}OZ ﬁWm.;NN ..maQN .=_ ..CMEM._. .WM@W.WHBMWMWM&WW% il gjursaxiay patiying una) dboeiem paleg m« ~ or... G O .
putoipy yldoy - Auno) pbnpjem - diysumo] JaATY M3 ‘d PR
0BT HHoN 2 ‘eM HysumoL 1 MIN Jof My Jo aunsaua) IuEuIpIO uswdopadg ¢ Bunutid G

5
=3 b Jo @i Jaid 16 ()2 woii33g lin_ iy of
mnm.m mm.!lna ..v.u_a r m...w_-...m..m hc_.“ﬁu ebngiom !“.
o aspljo syl ur bupsoses Jo) pascside st i)
1$ \ 27pdg JoLalxg | oladay Siissios Gaamion 4l Are moiarss
%

U] ‘luawdofarag 5 20pdg meﬁN\H PaPIAGLY e An ATy v
P CQ.__.hUh_kth_OU pro| ] lwnysazeds Z :buiyied pasnbay bulpdoaay Jo [erciddy Jo alealfiiian
Aq Juawdojapag un pauugld v oy
40 o 4 v
Sawoyumo] 26pry platJuim — -\ e =i sme, ?%.y

Jof ——
[ 25eyd jeuld T

202 = adojs-ssol) abpuany | aspyy
222 = adojs-550J7 abpiaay [jed2n0

(B2Jy paj32]oid Al-GM)
J2ATY MAN FloJ yinog :paly paysialeM

(2204 ¥ bs v/@65 = pasy vowwo] acuds uadg
(2862) 1} bs 20¥ez = paip snoirsadwy
¥ = sjuf
g = siun wnwixgy luawdojapag aininy

52430 gohl = | IsBYY

/ssn apand 1o) pateoipap dek Jo e 09
/" peoy abpiy uosim £Z6I ISIN

6l = slwn pasodoly
£2 = slun wowixgy

any/siun 226+ = Misuag ajqemoly g e

i b gze'T = 141 dun
spaly puel lun

W Ds G297 = 26T un
3 bs @zo7 = 1641 un

2avl) 1 bs 99g'/1 = valy uounwo)sanpds uady
(x2°62) 1 bs 0go'as = pate snoialadwy
(ibs g9g6z2)
S2a1I0 £/2°G

de) 12
W A1 / T aevyd vo sjuswpAcKkul oS of ZZpZ 7z [Iky ApRwW UCIIATY T Kl
———= 3bpd Jy — spJoday .LE Jo0g wﬂt E;.En_uu..h Emzutﬂutﬁ;%&hﬂu g
- wn pua o ao¢/ oM apisino o pue
dumidlpy s Ligpunog st siun Gupiolpe vaaA(aq [leM /1) vowwod ) Jo XY L2fUad A YUK und sauy Aepunoq (NN o
..m_ Eﬂin — ©09 36vd Lv o] sploday Jo swalsls odas Jof v
o4 qaxﬁf&.ﬁu b1 Jybry -7 ylaqezyz ey afim 2y g Eﬂ&.ﬂrﬁ sty slunysio] gt swel s 2 of poylaw [peodsip ﬂnng
uaaln au Janag thiddns JajeMl aqnd Jo Aflununuoz g jou) padeys Jo [enpiAlpul 39 of a2inos Jaled Buruug 9 -
&fne‘wﬁ%m D aueys 4 wsbold bulddey uipidpooly puyosey ylioy ayl Jad galg
o Jatog o E&.me%oo\:ousﬁuaicuumsoeﬁﬁsggsnwxﬂun&guhauﬁ&hﬂn%
ek a1l & Y POYIAU (LaNedRlS) Sadpnbs 53 2L AQ palshipe usaq
lujog palymyes - \ SEY PUE QOU'OFT YRyl low lou 51 asiaAvy pai palsnipeun ayl .ﬂo Eh_m._u»a fo ﬂ.cﬂ TS
3 aw Lilawoab afpuipiood
an_oou Wz»ﬁam“w W \ ayl Aq palpinafez uaeq IARY SPRIT Ayl pup SjuawINSEIW [QIUOZLIOY aJp SaURISP Iy T -
uEtne Mmoo , SpUO3as Al [saivau 3yl of nod
i hon u?E.%e.Ru o /. uz2q 24wy pue Ior 2bed I 0z Jo0g [Rid Ul papsozal uid ayl of ameRs ag u.thﬂow -4
(suoydiioag Jauiog) \ ayand Ajunos ebnelem ayl Jo gge 36wd Iv Gz Jeoq luid vl pepiodal luid uo uAoys puT 49¥
_ucmmw.‘ ./ 26pd e Gizz sploJay jo joog u) paplodal paap Aq “au) ‘uawdopaag ¥ uodanilsuoy ppoj
o} palapuor spugl 3yl 'y j7vd) Jo Aaidns JuawdojpAag i pauueld puR Adgpunoq @ st syl -
L 1 L L L A L /‘ L A . L A L L | 52 O_Z_ L ,_J

36




050322 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 6:

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS

B. Middle Fork Greenway Grant Application
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Furman will present two grant opportunities for the Middle Fork Greenway - Boone Gorge
Park project. The two (2) grants are $500,000 from NC Division of Water Resources (DWR) and
a $100,000 from Recreational Trails Program (RTP). The DWR grant requires a 50% local match;
application deadline is June 30, 2022. The RTP grant requires a 25% local match; application
deadline is July 22, 2022. The local match will be provided by Blue Ridge Conservancy, Watauga
TDA, and donations.

Board approval is requested to submit applications to the N.C. Division of Water Resources and
the Recreational Trails Program in the amount of $500,000 and $100,000, respectively.

37



050322 BCC Meeting

Memorandum

Date: April 21, 2022

To:  Board of Commissioners, County Manager

From: Joe Furma?ﬁé/
RE: Middle Fork Greenway grant applications

There are two grant opportunities on the horizon for the Middle Fork Greenway — Boone Gorge

Park project. This is the same project for which an application for a PARTF grant was just
submitted. Specifically, a $500,000 grant from NC Division of Water Resources (DWR) and a
$100,000 Recreational Trails Program (RTP) grant are available. The DWR grant requires a 50%
local match; application deadline is June 30, 2022. The RTP grant requires a 25% local match;
application deadline is July 22, 2022. | request approval to submit applications from Watauga
County for these funds. The local match, as for previous grants, will be provided by Blue Ridge
Conservancy from various sources such as Watauga TDA and donations. Only units of local
government are eligible to apply for DWR grants. Non-profit organizations as well as local
governments are eligible for RTP grants, but the County, as the landowner, is the logical
applicant. The proposed budget for the Boone Gorge project is attached.

38



050322 BCC Meeting

Fo -k

6. Sources of the Applicant’s Matching Funds

Applicant: Watauga County Project Name: Middle Fork Greenway, Boone Gorge Park

Sources of the Applicants Matching Funds

Type of Matching Funds Availability Status

Cash $900,000 Watauga TDA Request In progress
Land Donation $1,000,000 Eilue:Ridge Pénding PARTF grant
Conservancy approval
State Grant $200,000 NC DWR Grant due June 2022
State Grant $350,000 NC Land & Water Grant due Fall 2022
State Capital Improvement Fund $800,000 State of NC Request in progress
State Grant $100,000 NC RTP Grant due Sept '22
Foundation Grant $100,000 T Canr?on Grant ap]?llcanon
Foundation submitted
Cash $252,750 MFG Capital Acct Available
Total $3,702,750

39



050322 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

40



050322 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 6:

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS

C. Proposed Revision and Reorganization of the Watauga County Community Housing
Trust

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Furman will request the Board to revive the Watauga Community Housing Trust (WCHT).
The Watauga Housing Forum has generated a renewed interest in affordable housing. The
Affordables have been identified as a group to take over where the WCHT ended. One change
recommended to the WCHT would be the composition of the Board of Directors. Currently, all
members are appointed by the Board and the bylaws would need to be changed to reflect this
modification. The modification would allow for a broader representation and free the entity from
any limitations associated with County control. Additionally, the Affordables would like for the
Trust to be designated by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) as a
Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO). This would allow the entity to apply
for funding which is not available under the existing structure.

Board action is requested to authorize the Affordables to assume responsibility of the Watauga
Community Housing Trust and make the necessary changes to the Board of Directors.

41



050322 BCC Meeting

Memorandum

Date:  April 26, 2022

To:  Board of Commissipners, County Manager

From: Joe Furman o —

RE: Watauga C unity Housing Trust

You are all aware of the significant interest and energy currently present in the community
regarding housing. On one hand, | am very heartened and encouraged by the level of interest, but
on the other hand, am troubled by the severity of the housing problems. Watauga County is
certainly not alone in the state or nation trying to grapple with the lack of affordable housing
supply, but the problem is definitely acute here. We all saw the Watauga County section of the
regional Housing Needs Analysis showing virtually zero vacancies.

tn 2008, the Board of Commissioners authorized the County Attorney’s office to establish

a non-profit 501¢3 organization in an attempt to address the shortage of affordable housing
then. The result was the Watauga Community Housing Trust. The initial Board of Directors was
Scott Eggers, Chelsea Garrett, and me. The remainder of the Board members were elected or
appointed; all of the appointed members were appointed by the Board of Commissioners.
Attached is the most recent membership roster as well as excerpts from the WCHT hylaws
describing appointment method. Unfortunately, we were not able to accomplish what we had
hoped to. The Trust has not been active since October, 2018, though the annual IRS filing has
continued, so the Trust is in good standing.

There are several groups interested in housing issues that have coalesced in recent months to
plan and host the just-completed Watauga Housing Forum series, One of the groups is “The
Affordables” which is primarily a faith-based group. One of their goals is to establish a local
housing trust. Information about their goals and proposed activities is attached. Rather than
start over, it makes sense for them to use the existing structure, and they propose to do so. |
am certainly in favor of that. | can’t speak for all of the current Board members, but several
are involved in the housing forums, and | feel confident that none would object to the Trust
being revived and reimagined. Because of the significant and broad community interest, the
most obvious change needed is the method of filling the Board of Directors’ seats. In my view,
it is no longer necessary, and probably not appropriate, for the members to be appointed by
the Board of Commissioners. The Articles of Incorporation, filed with both the IRS and the NC
Secretary of State, do not dictate that the Commissioners make the appointments. They
simply state that “the method of election of the Directors shall be set forth in the bylaws of
the corporation”. The only action needed would be to amend the attached section of the
bylaws, and that could be accomplished by a new Board, guided by legal counsel.

42



050322 BCC Meeting

An additional reason for the composition of the Board of Directors to be adjusted is that The
Affordables would like for the Trust to be designated by the US Department of Housing and
Urban Development {HUD) as a Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO).

This funding source would bring new annual funding from HUD into our community designated for
affordable housing. Pursuing this designation would be a future activity, but it will be good to
prepare for it. CHDOs require:

“At least one-third of the organization’s board of directors must be representatives of the low-
income community; no more than cne-third can be representatives of the public sector; and

The organization is not a governmental entity (including the participating jurisdiction, other
jurisdiction, Indian tribe, public housing authority, Indian housing authority, housing finance agency,
or redevelopment authority} and is not controlled by a governmental entity.”

Therefore, | recommend and request the Commissioners to concur with The Affordables
taking the responsibility to revive and reorganize the Watauga Community Housing Trust and
its Board of Directors. Furthermore, | request the Commissioners to consider what type of
involvement is desired for the County moving forward. Perhaps one seat on the Board is
appropriate. | have no doubt that participation by the County in proposed solutions will be
needed and sought; those requests can be brought to the Commissioners for consideration at
the appropriate time.

43



050322 BCC Meeting

What would a Community Housing Trust do?

A nonprofit designed to acquire housing via purchase or donation in
order to provide community-controlled affordable housing situations.

* Create a replicable process for raising funds to directly create affordable housing
stock.

* Allow for the creation of multiple tiers of affordable housing to address the
spectrum of housing needs (no/low-income, renters, low-income homeowners)

* Provide more options to the existing continuum of affordable housing providers
(NWRHA, Habitat, WAMY, Hospitality House, OASIS, Boone/Watauga County)

44



How would a Community Housing Trust work?

CHT raises funds through grants, donation campaigns, and public events

CHT works with partners to identify suitable properties

CHT uses funds raised to purchase properties outright and budget for improvements

CHT works with builder partners to make improvements

After renovations, property is made available for multiple possible uses:

Success in providing
housing bolsters
fundraising for next
property!

Home Sale/Land Lease
(low-income
homebuyers)

Section 8 Voucher Rental
(low-income renters,
seniors)

Emergency/Transitional
Housing
(unhoused/no income
individuals)



050322 BCC Meeting

WCHT MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS

Appointed: (with expiration year shown)

High Country Association of Realtors (Laurie Phillips) 2019 5™ term
ASU (Tim Burwell) 2019 5" term

Town of Boone (Lynne Mason) 2020 5" term

NWRHA (Ned Fowler) 2019 5% term

ARHCS (Amy Crabbe) 2020 5" term

Board of Education (Scott Elliott) 2019 5% term

High Country Home Builders Association (Buck Wellborn) 2020 5 term
WAMY (Melissa Soto) 2019 4" term

Habitat for Humanity (Alex Hooker) 2020 3" term

D A -

Elected: (with expiration year shown)

1. Scott Eggers 2019 (4th elected term)
2. Chelsea Garrett 2019 (4th elected term)
3. Joe Furman 2019 (4th elected term)

46



050322 BCC Meeting

ARTICLE I -- NAME, OFFICES AND PURPOSES

Section 1. Name. The name of the corporation shall be Watauga Community
Housing Trust, hereinafter referred to as the “corporation.”

Section 2. Principal Office. The principal office of the corporation shall be located at
042 W. King St., Boone, NC, 28607, which shall also be the registered office of the corporation.

Section 3. Other Offices. The corporation may have offices at such other places,
either within or without the State of North Carolina, as the Board of Directors may from time to
time determine.

Section 4. Purposes. The purposes of the corporation are as stated in the Articles of
Incorporation:

(A) To operate exclusively for charitable, educational, religious and scientific
purposes within the meaning of Sections 501(c)(3) and 170(c)}2) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 or the corresponding provisions of any future United
States Internal Revenue laws (the “Code™); and

(B)  To engage in any lawful activity for which corporations may be organized under
Chapter 55A of the General Statutes of North Carolina so long as the corporation
does not engage in any activity or activities not in furtherance of one or more tax
exempt purposes as contemplated in section 501{c)(3) of the Code.

(C) To engage in the development of affordable/ workforce housing in Watauga
County.

ARTICLE II -- BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. General Powers. The affairs of the corporation shall be managed by the
Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of applicable law, the Articles of
Incorporation and these bylaws.

Section 2. Classes, Number, Term and Qualification. The number of Directors of the
corporation shall not be less than three (3) nor more than fifteen (15). There shall be two classes
of Directorships, Appointed Directorships and Elected Directorships. Appointed Directorships
shall comprise the majority of the directorships. Elected Directorships shall comprise the
remaining directorships.

In the absence of a resolution fixing the total number of Directors of the corporation, the
number of Directors elected at the meeting or appointed by the Watauga Board of County
Commissioners or County Administrator, as designated herein, plus the number of Directors
continuing in office shall constitute the number of Directors of the corporation until the next
annual meeting unless the number is changed by action of a majority of the Directors.

The Directors shall be broken into term groups, as nearly equal in number as possible, to
serve in for initial staggered terms of two and three years. After the expiration of the initial term

a7



050322 BCC Meeting

of each Appointed Director, the Appointed Director may serve one (1) additional two-year term
without requiring reappointment by the Watauga Board of County Commissioners upon approval
prior to the additional term by a majority of the Directors then in office. After the second term,
if applicable, the Appointed Director may be reappointed by the Watauga County Board of
County Commissioners for additional two-year terms with a limit of six (6) terms total. After the
expiration of the initial term of each Elected Director, the Elected Director may be reelected for
additional two-year terms with a limit of six (6) terms total by a majority of the Directors then in
office in the same manner set forth in Article II, Section 3 below pertaining to appointment and
election of directors. If any Director does not wish to continue to serve at any time, including
between terms when he is eligible to be approved or reelected by the Directors for a successive
term, as applicable, he may resign and his vacancy shall be filled as set herein below in Article
I1, Section 5.

In the event of any increase or decrease in the number of Directors, the additional or
eliminated directorships shall be so classified as Appointed or Elected in order to maintain a
majority of Appointed Directors on the Board and the remaining or continuing Directors’ terms
shall be considered so to maintain equal numbers in each term group. In the event of the death,
resignation, retirement, removal or disqualification of a Director during the appointed or elected
term of office, the Director’s successor shall be appointed or elected, as designated herein, to
serve until the expiration of the term of the predecessor and, in the case of Elected Directors,
may be reelected or, in the case of an Appointed Director, may be approved to continue to serve
until reappointment is necessary as set forth herein above. In the event the successor Director is
not reelected or reappointed or approved by the Watauga Board of County Commissioners and/
or the Directors then in office at the time of the expiration of the predecessor’s term, the
successor Director shall continue to serve until reappointment or reelection, as applicable.
Directors need not be residents of the State of North Carolina. A majority of the Directors shall
each be a person who is not a “disqualified person” as that term is defined in Section 4946 of the
Code because the corporation is being organized as a supporting organization under section 509(a)(3)
of the Code.

Section 3. Appointment and Election of Directors. Each Appointed Director seat
shall be filled by a representative designated by an organization identified by WCHT’s Board
Directors then in office and presented to the Watauga Board of County Commissioners or
County Administrator (upon the direction of the Watauga Board of County Commissioners) for
approval and appointment of the organization’s directorship position. The organizations
identified shall be from the high country community and shall collectively represent a cross-
section of the community from whom it may be beneficial to get input regarding WCHT’s
purpose, goals and projects. Appointed Director seats shall be filled by organizations suggested
to the Board of County Commissioners by the Board of Directors in office from time to time as
vacancies occur or Appointed Directorships are added. Elected Directors shall be elected at any
annual or special meeting of the entire Board of Directors by a vote of a majority of all of the
Directors at the time in office. The election of Directors shall be a part of the order of business
of each annual meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Removal. Directors may be removed from office at any time with or
without cause by the Directors by the vote that would be required to elect the Director to the

48



050322 BCC Meeting

Board of Directors. If a Director is removed, a new Director may be elected or appointed, as
designated herein, to fill the vacancy at the same meeting.

Section 5. Resignation. A Director may resign at any time by communicating such
resignation to the Board of Directors, its presiding officer or to the corporation. The resignation
is effective when communicated unless the notice specifies a later effective date or subsequent
event upon which it will become effective.

Section 6. Vacancies. A vacancy occurring in an Elected Directorship in the Board
of Directors may be filled by a majority of the remaining Directors (but not less than two) at any
regular meeting or special meeting of the Board. A vacancy occurring in an Appointed
Directorship in the Board of Directors shall be filled by the Watauga Board of County
Commissioners at their regular scheduled meeting occurring after the vacancy or by the County
Administrator from time to time as directed by the Watauga Board of County Commissioners.

ARTICLE 1If -- MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be
held in the month of March of each year, for the purpose of electing Directors and officers of the
corporation and the transaction of such other business as may be properly brought before the
meeting. If the annual meeting is not held as designated by these bylaws, a substitute annual
meeting may be called by or at the request of the Board of Directors, and such meeting shall be
designated and treated for all purposes as the annual meeting.

Section 2. Special Meeting. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be
called by or at the request of the Chairman of the Board, the President or any two Directors.

Section 3. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at the
principal office of the corporation or at such other place, either within or without the State of
North Carolina, as shall either (i) be designated in the notice of the meeting or (ii) be agreed
upon at or before the meeting by a majority of the Directors then in office.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. The Secretary or other person or persons calling a
meeting for which notice is required shall give notice by mail or email, if a signed acceptance of
email notice has been received from a Director, at least five days before the meeting. Unless
otherwise indicated in the notice, any and all business may be transacted at a meeting of the
Board of Directors. Attendance by a Director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice,
except where a Director attends for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any
business because the meeting is not lawfully called.

Section 5. Quorum. A majority of the Directors in office immediately before a
meeting begins shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the

Board of Directors.

Section 6. Manner of Acting. Except as otherwise provided by law or in the bylaws,
the act of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be
the act of the Board of Directors.

48A



050322 BCC Meeting

Section 7. Action Without Meeting. Action taken by a majority of the Directors or
members of a committee without a meeting is nevertheless Board or committee action if written
consent to the action in question is signed by all of the Directors or members of the committee,
as the case may be, and filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board or committee,
whether done before or after the action is taken.

Section 8. Meeting by Conference Telephone. Any one or more Directors or
members of a committee may participate in a meeting of the Board or committee by means of a
conference telephone or similar communications device which allows all Directors participating
in the meeting to simultaneously hear each other during the meeting, and such participation in a
meeting shall be deemed presence in person at such meeting.

ARTICLE IV -- COMMITTEES

Section 1. Executive Committee. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a
majority of the number of Directors then in office, may designate two or more Directors to
constitute an Executive Committee, which shall have and may exercise the authority of the
Board in the management of the business and affairs of corporation during intervals between
meetings. Vacancies in the membership of the Executive Committee shall be filled by a majority
of the whole Board of Directors at a regular meeting or at a special meeting called for that
purpose. The Executive Committee shall keep minutes of its proceedings and shall report to the
Board of Directors on action taken. Minutes of meetings of the Executive Committee shall be
prepared and kept with the records of the corporation.

Section 2. Standing or Other Committees. Standing or other committees having two
or more members may be designated by a resolution adopted by a majority of the number of
Directors then in office. Vacancies in the membership of such committees shall be filled by
appointment made in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointment.

Section 3. Committee Authority. No committees of the Board (including the
Fxecutive Committee) shall be authorized to take the following actions:

(A)  Authorize distributions to or for the benefit of the Directors or officers,;

(B)  Approve dissolution, merger or the sale, pledge, or transfer of all or
substantially all of the corporation’s assets;

(C)  Elect, appoint or remove Directors, or fill vacancies on the Board of
Directors or on any of its committees, or

(D)  Adopt, amend, or repeal the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws.
ARTICLE V -- OFFICERS

Section 1. Titles. The officers of the corporation shall be a President, a Vice
President, a Secretary and a Treasurer. The Board of Directors may also elect a Chairman of the
Board of Directors, an Executive Vice President, one or more additional Vice Presidents, one or
more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers, and such other officers as it

4

48B



050322 BCC Meeting

shall deem necessary. Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, the additional officers shall
have the authority and perform the duties as from time to time may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same individual, but no officer may act
in more than one capacity where action of two or more officers is required.

Section 2. Election and Term. The officers of the corporation shall be elected by the
Board of Directors at the annual meeting. Each officer shail hold office until the next annual
meeting and until a successor is elected and qualifies.

Section 3. Removal. Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of
Directors may be removed at any time by the Board with or without cause.

Section 4. Resignation.  An officer or agent may resign at any time by
communicating such resignation to the corporation. A resignation is effective when it is
communicated unless it specifies in writing a later effective date.

Section 5. Vacancies. Vacancies among the officers may be filled and new offices
may be created and filled by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Chairman_of the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board of
Directors, if such officer is elected, shall preside at meetings of the Board of Directors and shall
have such other authority and perform such other duties as the Board of Directors shall

designate.

Section 7. President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the
corporation and, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall supervise and control the
management of the corporation in accordance with these bylaws. In default of a Chairman of the
Board, the President shall preside at meetings of the Board of Directors. The President shall
sign, with any other proper officer, instruments which may be lawfully executed on behalf of the
corporation, except where required or permitted by law to be otherwise signed and executed, and
except where the signing and execution shall be delegated by the Board of Directors to some
other officer or agent. In general, the President shall perform all duties incident to the office of
President and such other duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 8. Vice Presidents. The Vice Presidents shall exercise the powers of the
President during that officer’s absence or inability to act. Any action taken by a Vice President
in the performance of the duties of the President shall be presumptive evidence of the absence or
inability to act of the President at the time the action was taken. The Vice Presidents shall have
such other powers and perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

Section 9. Treasurer. The Treasurcr shall have custody of all funds and securities
belonging to the corporation and shall receive, deposit or disburse the same under the direction
of the Board of Directors; provided, that the Board may appoint a custodian or depository for any
such funds or securities, and the Board may designate those persons upon whose signature or
authority such funds may be disbursed or transferred. The Treasurer shall in general perform the
duties incident to the office and such other duties as may be assigned from time to time by the
President or the Board of Directors.

48C



050322 BCC Meeting

Section 10.  Assistant Treasurers. Each Assistant Treasurer shail have such powers
and perform such duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors, and the Assistant
Treasurers shall exercise the powers of the Treasurer during that officer’s absence or inability to
act.

Section 11.  Secretary. The Secretary shall keep accurate records of the acts and
proceedings of all meetings of the Board of Directors and shall give all notices required by law
and these bylaws. The Secretary shall have general charge of the corporate books and records
and of the corporate seal and shall affix the corporate seal to any lawfully executed instrument
requiring it. The Secretary shall sign such instruments as may require the signature of the
Secretary and in general shall perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary and such
other duties as may be assigned from time to time by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 12.  Assistant Secretaries. Each Assistant Secretary shall have such powers
and perform such duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors, and the Assistant
Secretaries shall exercise the powers of the Secretary during that officer’s absence or inability to

act.

ARTICLE VI -- INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 1. General Policy. It shall be the policy of the corporation to indemnify to
the maximum extent permitted by Chapter S5A of the General Statutes of North Carolina any
one or more of the Directors, officers, employees, or agents and former Directors, officers,
employees, or agents of the corporation, and persons who serve or have served at the request of
the corporation as directors, officers, partners, trustees, employees or agents of another foreign or
domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against judgments,
penalties, settlements and other liabilities incurred by them in connection with any pending,
threatened or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, investigative or
administrative (a “proceeding”) and against reasonable costs and expenses (including attorneys’
fees) in connection with any proceeding, where such liabilities and litigation expenses were
incurred incident to the good faith performance of their duties.

Section 2. Use of Corporate Funds. The corporation may advance expenses in
connection with any proceeding to any such person in accordance with applicable law. The use
of funds of the corporation for indemnification or for purchase and maintenance of insurance for
the benefit of the persons designated in Section I of this Article shall be deemed a proper
expense of the corporation.

ARTICLE VII -- GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. Seal. The seal of the corporation shall bear the name of the corporation
and the letters “N.C.”

Section 2. Waiver of Notice. A Director or other person entitled to receive a notice
required to be given under the provisions of these bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or by
applicable law, may waive such notice by signing a written waiver, whether before or after the

6

48D



050322 BCC Meeting

date and time stated in the notice. The waiver shall be filed with the minutes or corporate
records. A Director’s attendance at or participation in a meeting waives any required notice to
that Director of the meeting unless the Director at the beginning of the meeting (or promptly
upon arrival) objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting and does not
thereafter vote for or assent to action taken at the meeting.

Section 3. Checks. All checks, drafts or orders for the payment of money shall be
signed by the officer or officers or other individuals that the Board of Directors may from time to
time designate.

Section 4. Bond. The Board of Directors may by resolution require any or all
officers, agents or employees of the corporation to give bond to the corporation, with sufficient
sureties, conditioned upon the faithful performance of the duties of their offices or positions, and
to comply with such other conditions as may from time to time be required by the Board.

Section 5. Loans. No loans shail be contracted on behalf of the corporation and no
evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the
Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 6. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be the twelve month
period ending June 30" of each year.

Section 7. Conflict of Interest. A Director shall inform the Board of Directors of any
direct or indirect conflict of interest which the Director has with regard to any transaction
contemplated by the Board of Directors (a “Conflict of Interest”). A Conflict of Interest shall
exist in Board actions including, but not be limited to, actions concerning a transaction:

(i) in which the Director has a material financial interest, or

ii in which the Director is presently serving as a director, trustee, officer or
p y g
general partner of another party.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 55A-8-31 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the
director with a Conflict of Interest may participate in the discussion, but may not vote on the
transaction. The transaction is authorized, approved, or ratified by the vote of a majority of the
directors in office who have no Conflict of Interest (which must be more than one Director) and
when a majority of Directors who have no Conflict of Interest so vote, a quorum is deemed to be
present at the meeting for purposes of that vote.

Section §. Amendments. These bylaws may be amended or repealed and new bylaws
may be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the entire Board of Directors at any
meeting of the Board; provided, that notice of the meeting shall have been given which states
that the purpose or one of the purposes of the meeting is to consider a proposed amendment to
the bylaws and includes a copy or summary of the proposed amendment or states the general
nature of the amendment. Such notice may be waived as provided in these bylaws.

48E



050322 BCC Meeting

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the above bylaws of WATAUGA COMMUNITY
HOUSING TRUST were duly adopted by the Board of Directors effective as of January 27,
2011.

This the 27" day of January, 2011.

Secretary

[Corporate Seal]

48F



050322 BCC Meeting

RESOLUTION OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
WATAUGA COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST

The Directors of the Watauga Community Housing Trust (the “Corporation”)
have adopted the following resolution on January 27", 2011 meeting of the Board of Directors:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VII, Section 8 of the Corporation bylaws, said Bylaws
may be amended or repealed and new bylaws may be adopted by the affirmative vote of a
majority of the entire Board of Directors at any meeting of the Board; provided, that notice of the
meeting shall have been given which states that the purpose or one of the purposes of the meeting
is to consider a proposed amendment to the bylaws and includes a copy or summary of the
proposed amendment or states the general nature of the amendment. Such notice may be waived
as provided in these bylaws; and

WHERFAS, notice of the monthly meeting of the Board of Directors was sent at least five
(5) days prior to the meeting held on the 27" day of January, 2011; present were Buck Wellborn,
Wilma McDaniel, Lynne Mason, Joe Furman, John Earwood, Chelsea Garrett, Chris Coley, and
Scott Eggers, which constituted a quorum of the Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners finally approved the current
Directorship seats of the Board of Directors of the Corporation in the fall of 2010, and in order to
preserve the continuity of the Board of Directors, to further the stated purposes of the
Corporation, and to avoid the necessity of getting re-approval of the same Board of Directors
only approximately four (4) months after the initial approval, the above-named Directors present
at the meeting voted unanimously that it is in the Corporation’s best interests that Article II of the
Bylaws be amended to allow that all Directors be permitted to serve one additional two-year term
after the expiration of the Directors’ respective initial term without requiring re-election or re-
appointment upon approval by a majority of the current Directors then in office.

AMENDMENT TO BYL AWS

RESOLVED, that the Bylaws of the Corporation which appear in the minute book
immediately following the Articles of Incorporation shall be amended and restated to provide
that each Elected and Appointed Director shall be able to serve one additional two-year term
immediately after his or her initial term has expired upon approval of a majority of the Directors
then in office. The Secretary is directed to certify the amendment and restatement of the Bylaws

by signing them on the last page.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being the Secretary of the Corporation
certify that such actions were taken unanimously, effective as of the 27" day of January, 2011,

Secretary:
A .
CMiobrea P D7
Chelsea Garrett @

48G



050322 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 7:

REGISTER OF DEEDS HISTORIC RECORDS GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION
REQUEST

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Ms. Amy Shook, Register of Deeds, will request Board approval to apply for a grant in the amount
of $2,000 with a $2,000 match requirement. The match is present in the Register of Deeds
designated Automation, Enhancement and Preservation Fund (AEPF).

Board approval is required to authorize the application of the grant for $2,000 with the $2,000
match to come from the Register of Deeds designated Automation, Enhancement and Preservation
Fund (AEPF).

49



050322 BCC Meeting
Watauga County Courthouse
842 West King St., Suite 9 | Boone, NC 28607

Amy J. Shook - Register of Def—‘ds phone: 828.265.8052 | fax: 828.265.7632
Watauga County, North Carohna www.wataugacounty.org | amy.shook@watgov.org
MEMORANDUM
TO: Watauga County Board of Commissioners

Deron Geouque, County Manager

o
FROM: Amy J. Shook, Register of Deeds O,df))

SUBJECT: Grant Approval — Register of Deeds Historic Records Grant Program
DATE: April 21, 2022

Pursuant to Section 24.2 of the Current Operations Appropriations Act of 2021 (SL 2021-180), all
Register of Deeds offices in North Carolina are now eligible for matching grant funds to preserve
historic records and files. Eligible uses of grant funds include activities such as document restoration,
reparation, deacidification, and placement in archival binders.

As cited by the law, the Office of State Budget and Management (OSBM) will administer the new
grant program, and offers grants of up to $2,000 to all Register of Deeds offices in NC. The law also
requires a 100% local match. The deadline to submit grant applications to OSBM is May 11, 2022.

| am requesting approval to apply for this grant and to receive the $2,000 local match. The local
match of $2,000 will come from the Register of Deeds designated Automation, Enhancement and
Preservation Fund (AEPF), which per statute (G.S. 161-11.3), is a percentage of fees collected by the
Register of Deeds office, placed in a non-reverting fund to be used at the request of the Register for
additional automation of the office not included in the general fund and other needs associated with
the enhancement and preservation of public records in the Register of Deeds office.

The grant program will provide $200,000 split evenly across the state, however, should some of the
100 counties in NC choose not to apply for the grant, there will be additional funds available, creating
a second round of grant opportunities. Therefore, | would also like to request that should a second
round of grant money become available from this grant program, that | have approval to apply for
additional funds with the 100% local match also coming from the Automation, Enhancement and
Preservation Fund (AEPF). No amount from the general fund balance is being requested.

Thank you for your consideration of this request.

50



050322 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 8:

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS

A. Proposed Letters of Intent for Pre-Positioned Debris Management Contracts

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, will request Board approval to execute Letters of
Intent with Southern Disaster Recovery for hauling and DebrisTech for monitoring. The vendors
have been vetted by NC Emergency Management and there is no cost or obligation to utilize the
contracts.

Board approval is required to execute Letters of Intent with Southern Disaster Recover for hauling
and DebrisTech for monitoring.

51



050322 BCC Meeting

Cc

Watauga County Emergency Services

184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D
Boone, NC 28607
Phone 828-264-4235
Fax 828-265-7617

Fire Marshal ¢ Emergency Management ¢ Communications

April 19, 2022

To: Board of Commissioners
CcC: Deron Geouque, County Manager

Misty Watson, Finance Director
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board

Subject: Letters of Intent for Pre-positioned Debris Management contracts

Board of Commissioners,

Please consider my request to execute Letters of Intent with the state-procured debris contractors for
hauling and monitoring. The vendors, Southern Disaster Recover for hauling and DebrisTech for
monitoring, have been vetted by NC Emergency Management and there is no cost or obligation to utilize
the contracts, rather these Letters of Intent allow for planning efforts to begin on debris management
operations should there be a future need during times of disaster.

Respectfully,

/¥

Will Holt
ES Director

52



050322 BCC Meeting

County of Watauga

Administration Building, Suite 205 e 814 West King Street e Boone, North Carolina 28607

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS Telephone 828-265-8000 COUNTY MANAGER
TDD 1-800-735-2962 Deron T. Geouque

John Welch, Chairman Voice 1-800-735-8262

Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman COUNTY ATTORNEY

Carrington Pertalion Anthony di Santi

Larry Turnbow

Charlie Wallin

May 3, 2022

DebrisTech, LLC
925 Goodyear Blvd
Picayune, MS 39466

Attn: Debra McCormick, Business Manager
Re: Disaster Readiness/Debris Monitoring
Dear Ms. McCormick,

This letter formalizes the Watauga County’s intent for debris monitoring in the event of a major
disaster that affects ourcommunity.

The State of North Carolina recognizes that debris removal is one of the biggest challenges that
communities face after a disaster. Good planning and resourcing for disaster debris monitoring
can overcome many of those challenges.To help address these challenges, the State of North
Carolina has established prepositioned disaster debris monitoring contracts for use by local
governments.

At the point of need, Watauga County intends to use the State’s prepositioned disaster debris
monitoring contract and issue a notice to proceed off the State’s solicitation to help our community
recover from disaster. With the communication of this intent, we look forward to operational pre-
planning efforts with your firm.

We hope we are not faced with a major disaster, however, this opportunity only strengthens our
preparedness so thatwe may be ready for what the future may hold.

Sincerely,

John Welch, Chairman
Watauga County Board of Commissioners

53



050322 BCC Meeting

County of Watauga

Administration Building, Suite 205 e 814 West King Street e Boone, North Carolina 28607

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS Telephone 828-265-8000 COUNTY MANAGER
TDD 1-800-735-2962 Deron T. Geouque

John Welch, Chairman Voice 1-800-735-8262

Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman COUNTY ATTORNEY

Carrington Pertalion Anthony di Santi

Larry Turnbow

Charlie Wallin

May 3, 2022

Southern Disaster Recovery

109 White Oak Road

Greenville, SC 29609

Attn: Robert “Chip” Patterson
Vice President of Operations

Re:  Disaster Readiness/Debris Management
Dear Mr. Patterson,

This letter is written regarding Watauga County’s intent for debris management in the event of a
major disaster that affects our community.

The State of North Carolina recognizes that debris removal is one of the biggest challenges’
communities face after a disaster. Good planning and resourcing for disaster debris removal can
overcome many of those challenges. To help address these challenges, the State of North Carolina
has established prepositioned disaster debris removal contracts for use by local governments.

At the point of need, Watauga County intends to use the State’s prepositioned disaster debris
removal contract and issue a notice to proceed off the State’s solicitation to help our community
recover from disaster. With the communication of this intent, we look forward to operational pre-
planning efforts with your firm.

We pray that we are not faced with major disaster, however, we’re pleased for this opportunity
with you to strengthen our preparedness and be ready for what the future may hold.

Sincerely,

John Welch, Chairman
Watauga County Board of Commissioners

54



North Carolina Emergency Management

State-wide Regional
Prepositioned Debris Contracts

Utilizing these Contracts




DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

050322 BCQARIEE

o
o3

Regions Ve

A

.
NORTH CAROLINA

Western Branch Central Branch Eastern Branch

| |Region11 [ Region 6 | |Region1
[ | Region12 [ | Region7 . | | Region2
B Rregion 13 [ Region 8 I | Region3
[ | Region9 || Region4
- Region 10 - Region 5 %




NAC "
u)S3 Program Basics

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

* Purpose: To properly procure and preposition
disaster debris removal and monitoring contracts
that may be activated by state agencies and local
governments in any disaster event, to aid in overall
recovery and speed of response.

* The program is completely voluntary.

* Hauling and Monitoring are independent contracts
and do not have to be activated together.

» Activating Entity will still be responsible for all
aspects of the recovery process, including fiscal
management and area priorities.




NAC
DPS Resources

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

WEBSITE EMAIL

e NCEM Debris Management Resources * debris@ncem.org

* This email is maintained and
answered by members of NC
Emergency Management’s
Recovery Debris Team.

Disaster Recovery

Debris Management

Individual Assistance

Public Assistance
For Local Governments

Debris removal is one of the biggest challenges in after any disaster. From lack of available Hazard Mitigation

contractors. to improper monitoring, to procurement violations which impact FEMA
reimbursement, debris removal problems can impede the community's recovery. To help address Debris Management
these challenges, NCEM encourages using prepositioned disaster debris removal and monitoring

contracts for activation by local governments and state agencies
Ty v Disaster Reservists Program

Prepositioned Contracts Public Assistance for COVID-19

o Contracts are prepositioned in geographic regions (5o« ')

¢ NCEM is competitively bidding the contracts in full compliance with state and federal (2
CFR Part 200) procurement requirements

58


https://www.ncdps.gov/emergency-management/em-community/recovery-mitigation/debris-management
mailto:debris@ncem.org

How to Activate

DPS’

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

1. A one page Notice to Proceed document must be forwarded to the
contractor to activate the contract.

e This document is available on the NCEM Debris Management Resources

NOTIE 7O PROCIID

2. Notice to Proceed should be sent to the listed Area
Representative for the Contractor.

3. Primary, Secondary and Tertiary Contractors have
been awarded; however, you must use the Primary
Contractor unless they inform you they have reached
capacity. Same with the Secondary.

4. Full terms, conditions and pricing are incorporated =i
by reference.

59


https://www.ncdps.gov/emergency-management/em-community/recovery-mitigation/debris-management

NAC "
u)S3 Information Needed to Activate

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

What NCEM Makes Available
e Contractor Contact Information

* Region Designation
 Contract Number and Date

Activating Entity Provides

* Activating Entity Point of Contact
for Contract Matters with Contact
Information

* Activating Entity Point of Contact
for Work Performance Matters
with Contact Information

e Estimated Debris Costs
* Required Work Plan Date

60



(NAC "
u{S‘j What these Contracts Are Not

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

1. Prepositioned Contracts do not transfer the financial responsibility. As
the activating entity you will incur costs related to your own recovery will
still be the applicant for FEMA Category A reimbursement in federally
declared major disasters

2. Activating entities will still manage and oversee the debris operations in
their respective jurisdictions (including obtaining all necessary permits).

3. NCEM will not manage local debris operations or apply for Category A
reimbursement on behalf of another state agency or local government.

4. Local Governments will enter into MOAs with NCDOT for debris removal
along state-designated roads as needed and under separate agreements
directly with NCDOT accordingto NCDOT policies and procedures.

61



050322 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

62



050322 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 8:

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS

B. Proposed Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Holt will request Board approval for the attached Resolution adopting the High Country
Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan.

Board action is required to approve the attached resolution adopting the High Country Regional
Hazard Mitigation Plan.

63



050322 BCC Meeting

Watauga County Emergency Services

184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D
Boone, NC 28607
Phone 828-264-4235
Fax 828-265-7617

Fire Marshal ¢ Emergency Management ¢ Communications

April 19, 2022

To: Board of Commissioners
CcC: Deron Geouque, County Manager

Misty Watson, Finance Director
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board

Subject: Adoption of the Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Board of Commissioners,
Please consider my request to approve the attached Resolution adopting the High Country Regional
Hazard Mitigation Plan. This is a multi-jurisdictional plan that is reviewed every five years and required

to remain eligible for FEMA post-disaster funding.

Respectfully,

W

Will Holt
ES Director

64



050322 BCC Meeting
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF WATAUGA

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE
HIGH COUNTRY REGIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN

WHEREAS, Watauga County is vulnerable to an array of hazards that can cause loss of life
and damages to public and private property; and

WHEREAS, Watauga County desires to seek ways to mitigate situations that may aggravate
such circumstances; and

WHEREAS, the development and implementation of a hazard mitigation plan can result in
actions that reduce the long-term risk to life and property from natural hazards; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board of County Commissioners to protect its citizens and
property from the effects of natural hazards by preparing and maintaining a local hazard mitigation
plan; and

WHEREAS, it is also the intent of the Board of County Commissioners to fulfill its obligation
under North Carolina General Statutes, Chapter 166A: North Carolina Emergency Management Act
and Section 322: Mitigation Planning, of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency
Assistance Act to remain eligible to receive state and federal assistance in the event of a declared
disaster affecting the Watauga County; and

WHEREAS, Watauga County, in coordination with Ashe, Alleghany, and Wilkes counties and
the participating municipalities within those counties has prepared a multi-jurisdictional hazard
mitigation plan with input from the appropriate local and state officials; and

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Emergency Management and the Federal Emergency
Management Agency have reviewed the High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan for legislative
compliance and has approved the plan pending the completion of local adoption procedures.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners of Watauga
County hereby:

1. Adopts the High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan; and
2. Agrees to take such other official action as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the

proposed actions of the Plan.

ADOPTED this the 3 day of May, 2022.

John Welch, Chairman
ATTEST: Watauga County Board of Commissioners

Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board

65



050322 BCC Meeting

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Region 4

3005 Chamblee Tucker Road

Atlanta, GA 30341

09}'\4%
N
R 57
April 13,2022

Mr. Steve McGugan

State Hazard Mitigation Officer

Assistant Director / Mitigation Section Chief

Division of Emergency Management, NC Department of Public Safety
200 Park Offices Drive

Durham, NC 27713

Reference: High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Dear Mr. McGugan:

The Federal review of the draft High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan for compliance with the
planning requirements contained in 44 CFR §201.6 is complete. The plan is compliant with Federal
requirements, subject to formal community adoption.

For our office to issue formal approval of the plan, the jurisdiction(s) must submit adoption
documentation. Upon receipt of the adoption resolution(s) to our office, we will issue formal approval
of the High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. Once approved, please submit a final copy of
the Plan, without draft notations and track changes.

If you or any plan participant need assistance, please do not hesitate to contact Edwardine Marrone, of
my staff, at (404) 433-3968.

Sincerely,

Kristen Martinenza, P.E., CFM
Branch Chief, Risk Analysis Branch
FEMA Region 4

66



High Country Regional
Hazard Mitigation Plan

FINAL - April 2022

- - -
FELL, an n{f-‘ 1%

ol e
A g
ol 5




050322 BCC Meeting

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Tl o Yo [V Tox o o AR SECTION 1
e P YT oYL g o o o Yol =L TSR SECTION 2
COMMUNILY PrOTIl@.c. ittt et st ee et et sreeas e sae e e sbesaseesaesneenne sreenns SECTION 3
Hazard IdentifiCation.......o.cueiiiri et st st e SECTION 4
B T [0 I o o 1 LTSRS SECTION 5
VUINErability ASSESSMENT....c.uiiie ettt st st ere s e s e saesre et e s e e s SECTION 6
CaPability ASSESSIMENT....cuviiceieieeceeeieectee e eee e e e et te e sreeetae e sre e st seesaesesaeessesessesssesnsseesseenssennsessen SECTION 7
IMHEIZAtION STrat@BY .. i e e et e sae e st te e e sae e e e e saeaes ssaeas SECTION 8
AV L= Y oY o I AVt o o TN = = o T SECTION 9
Plan IM@iNTENANCE.....couieeieee ittt ettt st st st st sae e e e e et es e e eseesaessessenbessansesseenseneesees SECTION 10
e FE T 1Yo [o] ] 4 Lo o SRR PR APPENDIX A
o P YT o1 oY= I Yo ] U URRUPRPP APPENDIX B
Local Mitigation Plan ReVIEW TOO.........uuuuiiiieei e e e s APPENDIX C
Planning Process Documentation.........cccoooeeiieiiii e APPENDIX D
Completed Mitigation ACTIONS.......cccviirierere ettt e e e s st s s e APPENDIX E
FIOO HAzard IMIaps....c..cceeirieie ettt sttt ettt e e e e e e st st b sbesseeseeeene et aesaessessessanes APPENDIX F
Wildfire HAzard IMAs......c.eceeevveieeie ettt sttt st ete et e esaestessaesbeesaestesaseesbennnesaesnnensans APPENDIX G
NCEI EVENTS ...t et s eb e st e sb e sbeeeb e sbe s b se s sneenaeaas APPENDIX H

68



050322 BCC Meeting

SECTION 1
INTRODUCTION

This section provides a general introduction to the High-Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. It
consists of the following five subsections:

1.1 Background

1.2 Purpose

1.3 Scope

1.4 Authority

1.5 Summary of Plan Contents

1.1 BACKGROUND

Natural hazards, such as hurricanes, floods, and tornadoes, are a part of the world around us. Their
occurrence is natural and inevitable, and there is little we can do to control their force and intensity. We
must consider these hazards to be legitimate and significant threats to human life, safety, and property.

The High-Country Region is located in the western part of North Carolina and includes the counties of
Alleghany, Ashe, Watauga, and Wilkes. This area is vulnerable to a wide range of natural hazards such as
floods, landslides, winter storms, severe thunderstorms, and wildfires. It is also vulnerable to human
caused hazards, including chemical releases and hazardous material spills. These hazards threaten the
life and safety of residents in the High-Country Region and have the potential to damage or destroy both
public and private property, disrupt the local economy, and impact the overall quality of life of
individuals who live, work, and vacation in the High-Country Region.

While the threat from hazardous events may never be fully eliminated, there is much we can do to
lessen their potential impact upon our community and our citizens. By minimizing the impact of hazards
upon our built environment, we can prevent such events from resulting in disasters. The concept and
practice of reducing risks to people and property from known hazards is generally referred to as hazard
mitigation.

ERARDNe .. e
_J\i_‘“ ) FEMA Definition of Hazard Mitigation:
= — 3
i .| “Any sustained action taken to reduce or eliminate the long-term risk to human life and
G‘?.h - 2%/ property from hazards.”
NT TE

Hazard mitigation techniques include both structural measures (such as strengthening or protecting
buildings and infrastructure from the destructive forces of potential hazards) and non-structural
measures (such as the adoption of sound land use policies and the creation of public awareness
programs). It is widely accepted that the most effective mitigation measures are implemented at the
local government level, where decisions on the regulation and control of development are ultimately
made. A comprehensive mitigation approach addresses hazard vulnerabilities that exist today and in the

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 1:1

FINAL — April 2022
69



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION

foreseeable future. Therefore, it is essential that projected patterns of future development are
evaluated and considered in terms of how that growth will increase or decrease a community’s overall
hazard vulnerability.

A key component in the formulation of a comprehensive approach to hazard mitigation is to develop,
adopt, and update a local hazard mitigation plan as needed. A hazard mitigation plan establishes the
broad community vision and guiding principles for reducing hazard risk, and further proposes specific
mitigation actions to eliminate or reduce identified vulnerabilities.

The four counties participating in the development of the High-Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
first joined together in 2012 to develop the initial version of this plan. The plan was updated in
2017/2018 and this version serves as the second update of the regional plan. The process followed to
update the plan in detailed in Section 2: Planning Process.

This regional plan draws from each of the county plans and documents the region’s sustained efforts to
incorporate hazard mitigation principles and practices into routine government activities and functions.
At its core, the Plan recommends specific actions to minimize hazard vulnerability and protect residents
from losses to those hazards that pose the greatest risk. These mitigation actions go beyond simply
recommending structural solutions to reduce existing vulnerability, such as elevation, retrofitting, and
acquisition projects. Local policies on community growth and development, incentives for natural
resource protection, and public awareness and outreach activities are examples of other actions
considered to reduce the High-Country Region’s vulnerability to identified hazards. The Plan remains a
living document, with implementation and evaluation procedures established to help achieve
meaningful objectives and successful outcomes over time.

1.1.1 The Disaster Mitigation Act and the Flood Insurance Reform Acts

In an effort to reduce the Nation's mounting natural disaster losses, the U.S. Congress passed the
Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA 2000) in order to amend the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and
Emergency Assistance Act. Section 322 of DMA 2000 emphasizes the need for state and local
government entities to closely coordinate on mitigation planning activities and makes the development
of a hazard mitigation plan a specific eligibility requirement for any local government applying for
federal mitigation grant funds. These funds include the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), the
Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) program, and the Flood Mitigation Assistance
(FMA) program, all of which are administered by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
under the Department of Homeland Security. Communities with an adopted and federally-approved
hazard mitigation plan thereby become pre-positioned and more apt to receive available mitigation
funds before and after the next disaster strikes.

Major federal flood insurance legislation was passed in 2012 under the Biggert-Waters Flood Insurance
Reform Act (P.L. 112-141) and the subsequent Homeowner Flood Insurance Affordability Act (HFIAA) in
2014 which revised Biggert-Waters. HFIAA established the requirement that a FEMA-approved Hazard
Mitigation Plan is now required if communities wish to be eligible for any of the FEMA mitigation
programs. These acts made several changes to the way the National Flood Insurance Program is to be
run, including raises in rates to reflect true flood risk and changes in how Flood Insurance Rate Map
(FIRM) updates impact policyholders. These acts further emphasize Congress’ focus on mitigating
vulnerable structures.

The High-Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan has been prepared in coordination with FEMA Region

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 1:2

FINAL — April 2022
70



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION

IV and the North Carolina Division of Emergency Management (NCDEM) to ensure that the Plan meets
all applicable FEMA and state requirements for hazard mitigation plans. A Local Mitigation Plan Review
Tool, found in Appendix C, provides a summary of federal and state minimum standards and notes the
location where each requirement is met within the Plan.

1.2 PURPOSE
The purpose of the High-Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan is to:

B Completely update the existing High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan to demonstrate
progress and reflect current conditions;

B Increase public awareness and education;
B Maintain grant eligibility for participating jurisdictions;
B Update plans in accordance with Community Rating System (CRS) requirements; and
B Maintain compliance with state and federal legislative requirements for local hazard mitigation
plans.
1.3 SCOPE

The focus of the High-Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan is on those hazards determined to be
“high” or “moderate” risks to the High-Country Region, as determined through a detailed hazard risk
assessment. Other hazards that pose a “low” or “negligible” risk will continue to be evaluated during
future updates to the Plan, but they may not be fully addressed until they are determined to be of high
or moderate risk. This enables the participating counties to prioritize mitigation actions based on those
hazards which are understood to present the greatest risk to lives and property.

The geographic scope (i.e., the planning area) for the Plan includes the counties of Alleghany, Ashe,
Watauga, and Wilkes, as well as their incorporated jurisdictions. Table 1.1 the participating areas.

TABLE 1.1: PARTICIPATING JURISDICTIONS IN THE HIGH COUNTRY
REGIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN

Alleghany County

Sparta Unincorporated Alleghany County
Ashe County
Lansing West Jefferson

Jefferson Unincorporated Ashe County
Watauga County
Beech Mountain Seven Devils
Blowing Rock .
& Unincorporated Watauga County
Boone
Wilkes County
North Wilkesboro Wilkesboro
Ronda Unincorporated Wilkes County
High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 1:3

FINAL — April 2022
7



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION

1.4 AUTHORITY

The High-Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan has been developed in accordance with current state
and federal rules and regulations governing local hazard mitigation plans and has been adopted by each
participating county and local jurisdiction in accordance with standard local procedures. Copies of the
adoption resolutions for each participating jurisdiction are provided in Appendix A. The Plan shall be
routinely monitored and revised to maintain compliance with the following provisions, rules, and
legislation:

B Section 322, Mitigation Planning, of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency
Assistance Act, as enacted by Section 104 of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (P.L. 106-390);

B FEMA's Mitigation Planning Final Rule published in the Federal Register on September 16, 2009,
at 44 CFR Part 201; and

B Flood Insurance Reform Act of 2004 (P.L. 108-264) and Biggert-Waters Flood Insurance Reform
Act of 2012 (P.L. 112-141) and the Homeowner Flood Insurance Affordability Act of 2014.

1.5 SUMMARY OF PLAN CONTENTS

The contents of this Plan are designed and organized to be as reader-friendly and functional as possible.
While significant background information is included on the processes used and studies completed (i.e.,
risk assessment, capability assessment), this information is separated from the more meaningful
planning outcomes or actions (i.e., mitigation strategy, mitigation action plan).

Section 2, Planning Process, provides a complete narrative description of the process used to prepare
the Plan. This includes the identification of participants on the planning team and describes how the
public and other stakeholders were involved. It also includes a detailed summary for each of the key
meetings held, along with any associated outcomes.

The Community Profile, located in Section 3, provides a general overview of the High-Country Region,
including prevalent geographic, demographic, and economic characteristics. In addition, building
characteristics and land use patterns are discussed. This baseline information provides a snapshot of the
planning area and helps local officials recognize those social, environmental, and economic factors that
ultimately play a role in determining the region’s vulnerability to hazards.

The Risk Assessment is presented in three sections: Section 4, Hazard Identification; Section 5, Hazard
Profiles; and Section 6, Vulnerability Assessment. Together, these sections serve to identify, analyze,
and assess hazards that pose a threat to the High-Country Region. The risk assessment also attempts to
define any hazard risks that may uniquely or exclusively affect specific areas of the High-Country Region.

The Risk Assessment begins by identifying hazards that threaten the High-Country Region. Next, detailed
profiles are established for each hazard, building on available historical data from past hazard
occurrences, spatial extent, and probability of future occurrence. This section culminates in a hazard risk
ranking based on conclusions regarding the frequency of occurrence, spatial extent, and potential
impact highlighted in each of the hazard profiles. In the vulnerability assessment, NCEM’s Risk
Management Tool (RMT) is used to evaluate known hazard risks by their relative long-term cost in
expected damages. In essence, the information generated through the risk assessment serves a critical
function as the High-Country Region seeks to determine the most appropriate mitigation actions to
pursue and implement—enabling it to prioritize and focus its efforts on those hazards of greatest
concern and those structures or planning areas facing the greatest risk(s).

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 1:4

FINAL — April 2022
72



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION

The Capability Assessment, found in Section 7, provides a comprehensive examination of the High-
Country Region’s capacity to implement meaningful mitigation strategies and identifies opportunities to
increase and enhance that capacity. Specific capabilities addressed in this section include planning and
regulatory capability, staff and organizational (administrative) capability, technical capability, fiscal
capability, and political capability. Information was obtained through the use of a detailed survey
questionnaire and an inventory and analysis of existing plans, ordinances, and relevant documents. The
purpose of this assessment is to identify any existing gaps, weaknesses, or conflicts in programs or
activities that may hinder mitigation efforts and to identify those activities that should be built upon in
establishing a successful and sustainable local hazard mitigation program.

The Community Profile, Risk Assessment, and Capability Assessment collectively serve as a basis for
determining the goals for the High-Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan, each contributing to the
development, adoption, and implementation of a meaningful and manageable Mitigation Strategy that
is based on accurate background information.

The Mitigation Strategy, found in Section 8, consists of broad goal statements as well as an analysis of
hazard mitigation techniques for the High-Country Region to consider in reducing hazard vulnerabilities.
The strategy provides the foundation for a detailed Mitigation Action Plan, found in Section 9, which
links specific mitigation actions for each county department or agency to locally-assigned
implementation mechanisms and target completion dates. Together, these sections are designed to
make the Plan both strategic, through the identification of long-term goals, and functional, through the
identification of immediate and short-term actions that will guide day-to-day decision-making and
project implementation.

In addition to the identification and prioritization of possible mitigation projects, emphasis is placed on
the use of program and policy alternatives to help make the High-Country Region less vulnerable to the
damaging forces of hazards while improving the economic, social, and environmental health of the
community. The concept of multi-objective planning was emphasized throughout the planning process,
particularly in identifying ways to link, where possible, hazard mitigation policies and programs with
complimentary community goals related to disaster recovery, housing, economic development,
recreational opportunities, transportation improvements, environmental quality, land development, and
public health and safety.

Plan Maintenance, found in Section 10, includes the measures that the High-Country Region will take to
ensure the Plan’s continuous long-term implementation. The procedures also include the manner in
which the Plan will be regularly evaluated and updated to remain a current and meaningful planning
document.

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 1:5

FINAL — April 2022
73



050322 BCC Meeting

SECTION 2
PLANNING PROCESS

44 CFR Requirement

44 CFR Part 201.6(c)(1): The plan shall include documentation of the planning process used to develop the plan,
including how it was prepared, who was involved in the process and how the public was involved.

This section describes the planning process undertaken to develop the 2022 update of the High-Country
Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. Information about the planning process used to develop previous
versions of this plan can be found in those plans which are available from NCEM’s Hazard Mitigation
Planning Section and participating County Emergency Management Offices.

This section consists of the following eight subsections:

2.1 Overview of Hazard Mitigation Planning

2.2 History of Hazard Mitigation Planning in the High-Country Region
2.3 Updating the Plan in 2022

2.4 The High-Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee
2.5 Community Meetings and Workshops

2.6 Involving the Public

2.7 Involving the Stakeholders

2.8 Documentation of Plan Progress

2.1 OVERVIEW OF HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING

Local hazard mitigation planning is the process of organizing community resources, identifying and
assessing hazard risks, and determining how to best minimize or manage those risks. This process
culminates in a hazard mitigation plan that identifies specific mitigation actions, each designed to
achieve both short-term planning objectives and a long-term community vision.

To ensure the functionality of a hazard mitigation plan, responsibility is assigned for each proposed
mitigation action to a specific individual, department, or agency along with a schedule or target
completion date for its implementation (see Section 9: Mitigation Action Plans). Plan maintenance
procedures are established for the routine monitoring of implementation progress, as well as the
evaluation and enhancement of the mitigation plan itself. These plan maintenance procedures ensure
that the Plan remains a current, dynamic, and effective planning document over time that becomes
integrated into the routine local decision-making process (see Section 10: Plan Maintenance).

Communities that participate in hazard mitigation planning have the potential to accomplish many
benefits, including:

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:1

FINAL — April 2022
74



050322 BCC Meeting

SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

saving lives and property,

saving money,

speeding up recovery following disasters,

reducing future vulnerability through wise development and post-disaster recovery and
reconstruction,

expediting the receipt of pre-disaster and post-disaster grant funding, and

B demonstrating a firm commitment to improving community health and safety.

Typically, mitigation planning is described as having the potential to produce long-term and recurring
benefits by breaking the repetitive cycle of disaster loss. A core assumption of hazard mitigation is that
the investments made before a hazard event will significantly reduce the demand for post-disaster
assistance by lessening the need for emergency response, repair, recovery, and reconstruction.
Furthermore, mitigation practices will enable local residents, businesses, and industries to re-establish
themselves in the wake of a disaster, getting the community economy back on track sooner and with
less interruption.

The benefits of mitigation planning go beyond solely reducing hazard vulnerability. Measures such as
the acquisition or regulation of land in known hazard areas can help achieve multiple community goals,
such as preserving open space, maintaining environmental health, and enhancing recreational
opportunities. Thus, it is vitally important that any local mitigation planning process be integrated with
other concurrent local planning efforts, and any proposed mitigation strategies must take into account
other existing community goals or initiatives that will help complement or hinder their future
implementation.

2.2 HISTORY OF HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING IN THE HIGH-COUNTRY

REGION

Prior to the development of the initial High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan in 2012, each of
the four counties and jurisdictions participating in this Plan has a previously adopted hazard mitigation
plan. The FEMA approval dates for each of these plans, along with a list of the participating
municipalities for each plan, are listed below:

B Alleghany County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan (July 2011)
B Town of Sparta
B Ashe County Hazard Mitigation Plan (August 2010)
B Town of Jefferson
B Town of Lansing
B Town of West Jefferson
B Watauga County Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Update (March 2005)
B Town of Beech Mountain
B Town of Blowing Rock
B Town of Boone
B Town of Seven Devils
B Wilkes County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan (November 2004)
B Town of North Wilkesboro
B Town of Ronda
B Town of Wilkesboro

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:2
FINAL — April 2022

75



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

Each of the existing county-level plans was developed using the multi-jurisdictional planning process
recommended by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

For the development of the 2012 plan, all of the aforementioned jurisdictions joined to form a regional
plan. No new jurisdictions have joined the process and all of the jurisdictions that participated in
previous planning efforts participated in the development of the 2012 regional plan. The regional plan
was developed in order to simplify planning efforts for the jurisdictions in the High-Country region and
allowed resources to be shared amongst the participating jurisdictions to ease the administrative duties
of all of the participants by combining the four existing County-level plans into one multi-jurisdictional
plan. The 2012 plan was an important and successful first start for regional hazard mitigation planning
efforts and that success has carried over into a subsequent update of this plan in 2018 and for this
update in 2022.

2.3 UPDATING THE PLAN IN 2022

FEMA requires that hazard mitigation plans are required to be updated every five years to remain
eligible for federal mitigation and public assistance funding. To prepare the 2022 High-Country Regional
Hazard Mitigation Plan, ESP Associates, Inc. was hired by the North Carolina Emergency Management to
provide professional mitigation planning services. Per the contractual scope of work, the consultant
team followed the mitigation planning process recommended by FEMA (Publication Series 386 and Local
Mitigation Plan Review Guide) and recommendations provided by North Carolina Emergency
Management (NCEM) mitigation planning staffl. Additionally, for the 2021 update, FEMA Community
Rating System (CRS) and Community Wildfire Protection Plan (DWPP) requirements were integrated into
the plan update.

Tables 2.1 and 2.2 below provide an overview of how the Community Rating System and Community
Wildfire Protection Plan requirements were integrated into this plan update.

TABLE 2.1 FEMA HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING REQUIREMENTS
AND THE CRS 10-STEP PLANNING PROCESS REFERENCE TABLE

Phase | — Planning Process

§201.6(c)(1) Step 1: Organize to Prepare the Plan
§201.6(b)(1) Step 2: Involve the Public
§201.6(b)(2) & (3) Step 3: Coordinate
Phase Il — Risk Assessment
§201.6(c)(2)(i) Step 4: Assess the Hazard
§201.6(c)(2)(ii) & (iii) Step 5: Assess the Problem
Phase Il — Mitigation Strategy
§201.6(c)(3)(i) Step 6: Set Goals
§201.6(c)(3)(ii) Step 7: Review Possible Activities
§201.6(c)(3)(iii) Step 8: Draft an Action Plan
Phase IV — Plan Maintenance
§201.6(c)(5) Step 9: Adopt the Plan

L A copy of the negotiated contractual scope of work between NCEM and ESP is available through NCEM upon
request.

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:3

FINAL - April 2022
76



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

§201.6(c)(4) Step 10: Implement, Evaluate and Revise the Plan

Table 2.2 Community Wildfire Protection Plan Process Integration
Reference Table

Step 1: Convene Decisionmakers Section 2: Planning Process

Step 2: Involve Federal Agencies Section 2: Planning Process

Step 3: Engage Interested Parties Section 2: Planning Process

Step 4: Establish a Community Base Map Section 3: Community Profile

Step 5: Develop a Community Risk Assessment Sections 4, 5 and 6: Hazard Identification, Hazard

Profiles and Vulnerability Assessment
Section 7: Capability Assessment
Step 6: Establish Community Hazard Reduction Section 8: Mitigation Strategy
Priorities and Recommendations to Reduce
Structural Ignitability

Step 7: Develop an Action Plan and Assessment Section 9: Mitigation Action Plans
Strategy Section 10: Plan Maintenance
Step 8: Finalize the CWPP Appendix A: Plan Adoption

Source: Preparing a Community Wildfire Protection Plan — A Handbook for Wildland-Urban Interface Communities

The Local Mitigation Plan Review Tool, found in Appendix C, provides a detailed summary of FEMA’s
current minimum standards of acceptability for compliance with DMA 2000 and notes the location
where each requirement is met within this plan. These standards are based upon FEMA’s Final Rule as
published in the Federal Register in Part 201 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR). The planning
team used FEMA’s Local Mitigation Plan Review Guide (October 2011) for reference as they completed
the Plan.

For the development of the 2021 plan, all the aforementioned jurisdiction that participated in the
development of the 2018 plan participated in this plan’s development.

The process used to prepare this Plan included twelve major steps that were completed over the course
of approximately nine months beginning in April 2021. Each of these planning steps (illustrated in Figure
2.1) resulted in critical work products and outcomes that collectively make up the Plan. Specific plan
sections are further described in Section 1: Introduction.

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:4

FINAL - April 2022
77



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

FIGURE 2.1: MITIGATION PLANNING PROCESS FOR THE HIGH-COUNTRY REGION

(";. - - .K'\

- Kickoff i
. Meetmg Risk

: \‘__ / Assessment

Capability
Assessment
HAZARD
Mltlgatlon
MITIGATION

’Fmal Plaﬂ |Strategy ,
pTESEl"ItiItI n PLANNING nrhhgp
PROCESS
Documentation Mitigation
Strategy
Plan I Si
Maintenance - Draft - z tEI __
Procedures '.\Rpl‘_’“ | \'\Es_if--"'; {"' Meeting
E“ew;" -

Documentation Preparation

‘ Execution

2.4 THE HIGH-COUNTRY REGIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING

COMMITTEE

In order to guide the development of this Plan, the High-Country counties (Alleghany, Ashe, Watauga
and Wilkes) and representatives from their participating municipal jurisdictions created the High-
Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee. The Regional Hazard Mitigation Planning
Committee represents a community-based planning team made up of representatives from various
county departments and municipalities and other key stakeholders identified to serve as critical partners
in the planning process.

Beginning in April 2021, the Regional Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee members engaged in
regular discussions as well as local meetings and planning workshops to discuss and complete tasks
associated with preparing the Plan. This working group coordinated on all aspects of plan preparation
and provided valuable input to the process. In addition to regular meetings, committee members
routinely communicated and were kept informed through an e-mail distribution list.

Specifically, the tasks assigned to the Regional Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee members
included:

B participate in Regional Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee meetings and workshops
B provide best available data as required for the risk assessment portion of the Plan

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:5

FINAL - April 2022
78



SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

050322 BCC Meeting

B help review the local Capability Assessment information and provide copies of any
mitigation or hazard-related documents for review and incorporation into the Plan
B support the development and update of the Mitigation Strategy, including the design and

adoption of regional goal statements

B help design and propose appropriate mitigation actions for their department/agency for

incorporation into the Mitigation Action Plan

B review and provide timely comments on all study findings and draft plan deliverables
B support the adoption of the 2022 High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Table 2.3 lists the members of the Regional Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee who were

responsible for participating in the development of the Plan.

TABLE 2.3: MEMBERS OF THE 2022 HIGH-COUNTRY REGIONAL
HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING COMMITTEE

Alleghany County

Roten, Daniel
Dalton, Travis

Gambill, Patty
Wesley, Barker

Ashe County
Ashe County

Alleghany County
Alleghany County
Ashe County

EM Coordinator
Chief Inspector/County Planner

EM Coordinator
Director of Planning

Town of Jefferson

Shatley, Charity

Town of Lansing
Town of Lansing

Roten, Sandy

Town of Jefferson

Town Manager

Town Clerk

Town of West Jefferson

Price, Brantley

Town of West Jefferson

Town Administrator

Watauga County

Holt, Will Watauga County
Town of Boone

Ward, John Town of Boone

Hamby, Suzanne B. Wilkes County

Barnes, Eddie Wilkes County

Wilkes County

Emergency Management Director

Town Manager

Emergency Management Director
Planning Director

Other Stakeholders

Marrone, Edwardine FEMA Region 4

Hamby, Karen NCEM
Baker, Carl NCEM
Crew, Chris NCEM
Greene, Russell NCEM
Mello, John NCEM

Area Coordinator
Hazard Mitigation Planner
Mitigation Plans Manager
Area Coordinator
Hazard Mitigation Planner

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan
FINAL — April 2022

2:6

79



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

Norris, Seth Deep Gap Fire Department  Fire Chief
Powers, Mac >>> >>>
Steelman, John >>> >>>

Table 2.4 lists points of contact for several of the jurisdiction who elected to designate their respective
county officials to represent their jurisdiction on the planning team, generally because they did not have
the time or staff to be able to attend on their own. Although these members designated county officials
to represent them at in-person meetings, each was still contacted throughout the planning process and
participated by providing suggestions and comments on the Plan, updates to mitigation actions and the
Capability Assessment via email and phone conversations. These members are listed below by
municipality.

Table 2.4: Members Designating Representatives to the High-Country
Regional Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee

Alleghany County

Brinegar, David Town of Sparta/Mayor
Watauga County
Kaufman, Barry Town of Beech Mountain/Mayor
Sellars, Herman Town of Blowing Rock/Mayor
Fontaine, Larry Town of Seven Devils/Mayor
Wilkes County

Hauser, Marc Town of North Wilkesboro/Mayor
Benge, Rheajean Town of Ronda/Mayor
Inscore, Michael Town of Wilkesboro/Mayor

Additional participation and input from other identified stakeholders and the general public was sought
by the participating counties during the planning process through phone calls and the distribution of
emails, advertisements, and public notices aimed at informing people on the status of the Hazard
Mitigation Plan (public and stakeholder involvement is further discussed later in this section).

2.4.1 Multi-Jurisdictional Participation

The High Country Regional Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan includes four counties and eleven
incorporated municipalities. To satisfy multi-jurisdictional participation requirements, each county and
its participating jurisdictions were required to perform the following tasks:

B Participate in mitigation planning workshops;

B Identify completed/new mitigation projects, if applicable and identify any new mitigation
actions to be included in the plan, and;

B Develop and adopt (or update) their local Mitigation Action Plan.

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:7

FINAL - April 2022
80



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

Each jurisdiction participated in the planning process and has developed a local Mitigation Action Plan
unique to their jurisdiction. Each jurisdiction will adopt their Mitigation Action Plan separately. This
provides the means for jurisdictions to monitor and update their Plan on a regular basis.

2.5 COMMUNITY MEETINGS AND WORKSHOPS

The preparation of this Plan required a series of meetings and workshops for facilitating discussion,
gaining consensus and initiating data collection efforts with local government staff, community officials,
and other identified stakeholders. More importantly, the meetings and workshops prompted continuous
input and feedback from relevant participants throughout the drafting stages of the Plan.

The following is a summary of the key meetings and community workshops held during the
development of the plan update?. In many cases, routine discussions and additional meetings were held
by local staff to accomplish planning tasks specific to their department or agency, such as the approval
of specific mitigation actions for their department or agency to undertake and include in the Mitigation
Action Plan.

2.5.1 Meeting Minutes

Meeting Minutes from Kickoff Conference Call/Teams Meeting
April, 29, 2021

Phone Call/Teams Meeting

On April 16, 2021 ESP Associates reached out by email to County Emergency Management and Planning
Department leads from Alleghany, Ashe, Watauga, and Wilkes to introduce themselves, explain the plan
update process in general and schedule a time to hold an informal internal kickoff conference
call/Teams meeting.

On April 29, 2021, Nathan Slaughter, Hazard Mitigation Department Manager from ESP Associates, Inc.
and Project Manager for the update of the High-Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan conducted a
conference call/Teams meeting with the High Country stakeholders. Mr. Slaughter began by having
attendees introduce themselves. The 8 attendees included representatives from various departments
and local jurisdictions within each of the four counties participating in the plan update. All four counties
were represented. Mr. Slaughter then provided an overview of the items to be discussed at the meeting
and briefly reviewed the agenda and presentation slide handouts. He then defined mitigation and gave
a review of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 and NC Senate Bill 300.

To continue, Mr. Slaughter provided detailed information about the project. He mentioned that the
project is funded by a FEMA HMGP grant, and that NCEM was managing the planning effort and had
assigned ESP Associates, Inc. to manage the update, thus ensuring that Mr. Slaughter would remain the
Project Manager, as he was for the first two versions of the regional plan. For this update, there was no
local funding required.

Mr. Slaughter then explained some of the basic concepts of mitigation. He explained how we should
think about mitigation: we want to mitigate hazard impacts of existing development in the community
(houses, businesses, critical facilities, etc.), and ensure that future development is conducted in a way

Z Copies of agendas, sign-in sheets, minutes, and handout materials for all meetings and workshops can be found
in Appendix D.

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:8

FINAL - April 2022
81



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

that doesn’t increase vulnerability. This can be achieved by having good plans, policies, and procedures
in place.

Mr. Slaughter then reviewed the key objectives of the project, which are to:

e Coordinate between the four participating counties to update the regional plan

e Update the plan to demonstrate progress and reflect current conditions

e Complete the update before the existing plan expires on December 28. 2022

e Increase public awareness and education

e Maintain grant eligibility for participating jurisdictions

e Update the plan in accordance with Community Rating System (CRS) requirements where
applicable, and

e Maintain compliance with State and Federal requirements

Next, he explained new elements to this update, which include integrating with NCEM’s RMT, Activity
510 compliance for CRS communities, Risk MAP, Community Wildfire Protection Plans, the NC Resilience
Assessment, and EMAP compliance.

Mr. Slaughter reviewed the list of participating jurisdictions with the group, which all agreed to
participate again. He also explained the planning process and specific tasks to be accomplished for the
project, which include the planning process, risk assessment, capability assessment, mitigation strategy,
mitigation action plan, and plain maintenance procedures. For the risk assessment portion of the
process, Mr. Slaughter asked each county to designate a point of contact to coordinate the gathering of
GIS data required for the analysis. He also reviewed the list of identified hazards and the committee
agreed to maintain the previous list of hazards for the four counties.

The project schedule was presented and Mr. Slaughter noted that the schedule provided ample time to
produce a quality plan and meet state and federal deadlines.

Mr. Slaughter discussed what data would need to be collected to complete the project. This includes GIS
Data, Capability Assessment Revisions, a Public Participation Survey, and updates to existing Mitigation
Actions.

Mr. Slaughter then reviewed the roles and responsibilities of ESP Associates, Inc, the County leads, and
the participating jurisdictions. The presentation concluded with a discussion of the next steps to be
taken in the project development. He encouraged meeting participants to distribute the Public
Participation Survey. The next Regional Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee meeting was scheduled
for some time in later in 2021 to discuss the findings of the risk and capability assessments and to begin
updating existing mitigation actions and identify new goals.

Meeting Minutes form Mitigation Strategy Meeting
October 28, 2021

Phone Call/Teams Meeting

10:00 am -11:30 am

Nathan Slaughter, Project Manager from ESP Associates, began the meeting by welcoming the
attendees and reviewing the meeting agenda. Mr. Slaughter asked meeting attendees to introduce
themselves and gave a refresher on mitigation, why we plan, and the key objectives of the project. He

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:9

FINAL - April 2022
82



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

reviewed the participating jurisdictions, project tasks and project schedule. He stated that a draft of the
updated Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan would be presented by the end of December 2021.

Mr. Slaughter then presented the findings of the risk assessment. He shared the list of all hazards that
are addressed in the regional plan, and reviewed the list of hazards addressed in the North Carolina
State Hazard Mitigation Plan. He discussed a couple of caveats for the risk assessment and indicated
that best available data was used. While that information is helpful, events are often under-reported, so
it is important to keep the end goal in sight. The purpose of the risk assessment was shared: to compare
hazards and determine which should be the focus of the mitigation actions. Finally, he mentioned to the
stakeholders that it ultimately is their risk assessment, so their recommendations for adjustment are
welcomed and encouraged.

Mr. Slaughter stated that since the last plan was updated, there have been six Presidential disaster
declarations that have impacted the region, which helped emphasize the need to continue updating the
mitigation plan.

The following Hazard Profiles and summaries of each hazard were then shared:

B DROUGHT: There were 7 regional drought events between 2000 and 2018, and future
occurrences are likely.

B HAILSTORM: There have been 321 recorded events since 1962. Future occurrences are likely.

B HURRICANE AND COASTAL STORM: 20 storm tracks have come within 75 miles of the region
since 1850. 3 of those were classified as a hurricane or tropical storm. Future occurrences are
likely.

B LIGHTNING: Since 1996, there have been 32 reported occurrences, which resulted in one injury
and nearly $2.7 million in property damage. Future occurrences are highly likely.

B SEVERE THUNDERSTORMS: 784 severe thunderstorm events have been recorded since 1959.
These events resulted in 3 deaths, 7 injuries, and over $5.18 million in property damages.
Future occurrences are highly likely.

B TORNADOES: There have been 14 recorded events since 1976, causing 10 injuries and $3.05
million in property damage. Future occurrences are likely.

B SEVERE WINTER WEATHER: 282 winter weather events SINCE 1996 that resulted in over $1.35
million in property damage have been recorded since 1993. Future occurrences are highly likely.

B DAM AND LEVEE FAILURE: Of the 115 dams in the region, 33 are considered high hazard dams.
No serious breaches have been reported, and future occurrences are unlikely.

B EROSION: Although little information could be obtained on erosion occurrences in the region,
erosion was addressed in the previous plan. Future occurrences are possible.

B FLOOD: 271 flood events have occurred since 1993, resulting in over $26.2 million in property
damage. There have also been 266 reported NFIP losses since 1978 and approximately $4.8
million in claims. There are 16 repetitive loss properties, and future occurrences are highly
likely.

B EARTHQUAKE: At least 86 earthquakes have occurred in the High-Country region since 1886.
Future occurrences are possible.

B LANDSLIDE: Landslide risk in the region is high and there have been previous occurrences of
landslides reported in the region according to the North Carolina Geological Survey. Future
occurrences are likely.

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:10

FINAL - April 2022
83



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

B HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INCIDENTS: 39 serious HAZMAT events have been reported through
the PHMSA. There are 8 TRI Facilities in the region. Future occurrences are possible.

B WILDFIRE: Much of the region is located in a high-risk wildland urban interface area. Future
occurrences are likely.

B NUCLEAR EMERGENCY: There are no nuclear facilities within 50 miles of the region. No major
historical occurrences were found, and future occurrences are unlikely.

In concluding the review of Hazard Profiles, Mr. Slaughter stated if anyone had additional information
for the hazard profiles, or disagreed with any of the data presented, they should call or email him with
their concerns.

The results of the hazard identification process were used to generate a Priority Risk Index (PRI), which
categorizes and prioritizes potential hazards as high, moderate or low risk based on probability, impact,
spatial extent, warning time, and duration. The highest PRI was assigned to Winter Storms and Freeze,
followed by Severe Thunderstorm, Flood and Landslides.

Mr. Slaughter then displayed maps that presented each county’s social vulnerability, as documented by
the Center for Disease Control. The maps present how socially vulnerable areas in each county are as
compared to the rest of North Carolina. Many indicators were used to determine the social
vulnerability, and the factors were grouped into four themes that were based on census-tract levels.

After a brief break, Mr. Slaughter then presented the Capability Assessment Findings. ESP Associates
used a scoring system that was used to rank the participating jurisdictions in terms of capability in four
major areas (Planning and Regulatory; Administrative and Technical; Fiscal; Political). Important
capability indicators include National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) participation, Building Code
Effective Grading Schedule (BCEGS) score, and Community Rating System (CRS) participation.

Mr. Slaughter reviewed the Relevant Plans and Ordinances, Relevant Staff/Personnel Resources, and
Relevant Fiscal Resources. All of these categories were used to rate the overall capability of the
participating counties and jurisdictions. Most jurisdictions are in the moderate to high range for
Planning and Regulatory Capability and in the low to moderate range for Fiscal Capability. There is
variation between the jurisdictions for Administrative and Technical Capability, mainly with respect to
availability of planners and grant writers. Based upon the scoring methodology, it was determined that
all of the participating jurisdictions have moderate or high capabilities to implement hazard mitigation
programs and activities.

Mr. Slaughter then transitioned to the Mitigation Strategy portion of the presentation. Mr. Slaughter
gave an overview of the process for updating the Mitigation Strategy and presented the existing
mitigation goals for the regional plan. He asked the HCRHMPC to review the goals to determine
whether or not they still reflect current vulnerabilities and current mitigation priorities. The committee
members agreed that the goals should be modified to mention human-caused hazards but otherwise
felt that they were still relevant hazard mitigation goals for the region.

Mr. Slaughter then discussed the results of the public participation survey that was posted on several of
the participating counties’ and jurisdictions’ websites. As of the meeting date, 202 responses had been
received. Based on the preliminary results, respondents felt that severe thunderstorms/high wind and
severe winter storms posed the greatest threats to their neighborhood. Most did not live in a floodplain

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:11

FINAL — April 2022
84



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

or have flood insurance, but 71% of all respondents did not know who to contact regarding reducing
their risks to hazards.

Mr. Slaughter then indicated that each participating jurisdiction would need to provide a status update
for their existing mitigation actions (completed, deleted, or deferred) by November 30, 2021. Mr.
Slaughter also discussed the Mitigation Action Worksheets to be completed for any new mitigation
actions and requested that all worksheets be returned by November 30, 2021. Mr. Slaughter then
presented sample mitigation actions for the committee members to consider to include in their plan
update.

Finally, Mr. Slaughter discussed the next steps in the planning process. These included returning
mitigation action updates and delivery of a draft plan in late December 2021. He thanked the group for
taking the time to attend and the meeting was adjourned.

2.6 INVOLVING THE PUBLIC
44 CFR Requirement

44 CFR Part 201.6(b)(1): The planning process shall include an opportunity for the public to comment on the
plan during the drafting stage and prior to plan approval

An important component of the mitigation planning process involved public participation. Individual
citizen and community-based input provides the entire planning team with a greater understanding of
local concerns and increases the likelihood of successfully implementing mitigation actions by
developing community “buy-in” from those directly affected by the decisions of public officials. As
citizens become more involved in decisions that affect their safety, they are more likely to gain a greater
appreciation of the hazards present in their community and take the steps necessary to reduce their
impact. Public awareness is a key component of any community’s overall mitigation strategy aimed at
making a home, neighborhood, school, business or entire city safer from the potential effects of
hazards.

Public involvement in the development of the High-Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan was sought
using two methods: (1) public survey instruments were made available; and (2) copies of draft Plan
deliverables were made available for public review on county websites and at government offices. The
Public was provided two opportunities to be involved in the actual plan development at two distinct
periods during the planning process: (1) during the drafting stage of the Plan; and (2) upon completion
of a final draft Plan, but prior to official plan approval and adoption. A public participation survey
(discussed in greater detail in Section 2.6.1) was made available during the planning process at various
locations throughout the High-Country region and on each county’s website.

Documentation of the final public meetings will be included in the final plan in this section and in
Appendix D.

2.6.1 Public Participation Survey

The High-Country Region was successful in getting citizens to provide input to the mitigation planning
process through the use of the Public Participation Survey. The Public Participation Survey was designed
to capture data and information from residents of the High-Country Region that might not be able to
attend public meetings or participate through other means in the mitigation planning process. Copies of
the Public Participation Survey were distributed to the Regional Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:12

FINAL - April 2022
85



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

to be made available for residents to complete at local public offices. A link to an electronic version of
the survey was also posted on each county’s website. The online version of the survey was provided on
the following websites:

B Goblueridge.net
B Appalachian Scene — Appalachian State University
B County Emergency Management websites for Alleghany, Ashe, Watauga and Wilkes Counties.

By the completion of the project, a total of 205 survey responses were received, which provided
valuable input for the HCRHMPC to consider in the development of the plan update. Selected survey
results are presented below.

B Approximately 38 percent of survey respondents had been impacted by a disaster, mainly
flooding, severe winter storms and remnants from hurricanes.

B Respondents ranked Severe Thunderstorms/High Winds as the highest threat to their
neighborhood (27.8 percent), followed by Severe Winter Storms (25.9 percent).

B Approximately 58 percent of respondents have taken actions to make their homes more
resistant to hazards and 78 percent are interested in making their homes more resistant to
hazards.

B 71.2 percent of respondents do not know what office to contact regarding reducing their risks to
hazards.

B Emergency Services, Natural Resource Protection, and Prevention, were ranked as the most
important activities for communities to pursue in reducing risks.

B A copy of the survey and a detailed summary of the survey results are provided in Appendix B.

2.7 INVOLVING THE STAKEHOLDERS

44 CFR Requirement

44 CFR Part 201.6(b)(2): The planning process shall include an opportunity for neighboring communities, local
and regional agencies involved in mazzard mitigation activities, and agencies that have the authority to regulate
development, as well as businesses, academia and other non-profit interests to be involved in the planning
process.

At the beginning of the planning process for the development of this plan, the project consultant
worked with each of the four County Emergency Management leads to initiate outreach to stakeholders
to be involved in the planning process. The project consultant sent out a list of recommended
stakeholders provided from FEMA Publication 386-1 titled Getting Started: Building Support for
Mitigation Planning, which demonstrated the wide range of stakeholders that were considered to
participate in the development of this plan. Each of the County Emergency Management leads used that
list for reference as they invited stakeholders from their counties to participate in the planning process.

The Regional Hazard Mitigation Committee encouraged more open and widespread participation in the
mitigation planning process. The region also went above and beyond in its local outreach efforts through
the design and distribution of the Public Participation Survey. This opportunity was provided for local
officials, residents, businesses, academia, and other private interests in the High Country Region to be
involved and offer input throughout the local mitigation planning process.

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:13
FINAL — April 2022
86



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 2: PLANNING PROCESS

2.8 DOCUMENTATION OF PLAN PROGRESS

Progress in hazard mitigation planning for the participating jurisdictions in the High-Country Region is
documented in this plan update. Since hazard mitigation planning efforts officially began in the
participating counties with the development of the initial Hazard Mitigation Plans in the late
1990’s/early 2000s, many mitigation actions have been completed and implemented in the participating
jurisdictions. These actions will help reduce the overall risk to natural hazards for the people and
property in the High-Country Region. The actions that have been completed are documented in
Appendix E.

In addition, community capability continues to improve with the implementation of new plans, policies
and programs that help to promote hazard mitigation at the local level. The current state of local
capabilities for the participating jurisdictions is captured in Section 7: Capability Assessment. The
participating jurisdictions continue to demonstrate their commitment to hazard mitigation and hazard
mitigation planning and have proven this by reconvening the Hazard Mitigation Planning Team to
update the Plan and by continuing to involve the public in the hazard mitigation planning process.

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 2:14

FINAL - April 2022
87



050322 BCC Meeting

SECTION 3
COMMUNITY PROFILE

This section of the Plan provides a general overview of the High-Country Region. It consists
of the following four subsections:

3.1 Geography and the Environment
3.2 Population and Demographics
3.3 Housing, Infrastructure, and Land Use

3.4 Employment and Industry

3.1 GEOGRAPHY AND THE ENVIRONMENT

The High-Country Region is located in the northern portion of the Western North Carolina Blue Ridge
Mountains. The region was named for the high rising mountain peaks and high elevations of its
communities and towns. For the purposes of this plan, the High-Country Region includes the counties of
Alleghany, Ashe, Watauga, and Wilkes. An orientation map is provided as Figure 3.1.

The region is a popular tourist destination for outdoor activities which include biking, fishing, hiking,
golfing, horseback riding, whitewater rafting, and even gem mining. The High Country is also known for
offering the most popular ski resorts in Western North Carolina and the area boasts many other
attractions, historical sites, and geological formations such as Grandfather Mountain and Blowing Rock.
At 5,946 feet, Grandfather Mountain’s Calloway Peak is the highest point in the Blue Ridge Mountains.

The total land area of each of the participating counties is presented in Table 3.1.

TABLE 3.1: TOTAL AREAS OF PARTICIPATING COUNTIES

Total Land Area

Alleghany 235 square miles
Ashe 426 square miles
Watauga 313 square miles
Wilkes 757 square miles

Source: US Census Bureau

The High-Country Region enjoys four distinct seasons but the climate in the region is considerably cooler
and more drastic than other parts of North Carolina. Dramatic and unexpected changes in weather, in
precipitation in particular, are quite common and late spring and early autumn are often marked by
windy conditions, sudden drops in temperature, and freezing rain, sleet, or snow. The climate in the
region more closely resembles that of New England or parts of the Upper Midwest rather than the
South. This is particularly true in winter when the area gets considerably more snow and wintery
precipitation than the rest of the state. In the winter, average high temperatures (°F) reach the low
forties while average low temperatures are in the low twenties. In the summer, average high
temperatures are in the high seventies and average low temperatures are in the high fifties.

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 3:1

FINAL — April 2022
88



050322 BCC Meeting
SECTION 3: COMMUNITY PROFILE

FIGURE 3.1: HiIGH COUNTRY REGION ORIENTATION MAP

High Country Region

—— L

Fal

0153 B .t T
I il

3.2 POPULATION AND DEMOGRAPHICS

Wilkes County is the largest participating county by area and it also has the largest population. Between
2010 and 2018, the participating jurisdictions experienced population growth and decline. The Town of
Boone, home of Appalachian State University, had the highest rate of growth at 14.2 percent.
Population counts from the US Census Bureau for 2000, 2010, and 2018 estimations for each of the
participating counties and jurisdictions are presented in Table 3.2.

High Country Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 3:2

FINAL — April 2